
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport 

Board of Directors - Meeting Agenda 
January 10, 2024 5:30 P.M. 

Administrative Conference Room 80 Airport Drive, Auburn, Maine 
 

Call to Order and Introductions of New Board Members 
                                                                                                               
I. Consent Items – All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one 

motion. 
 

II. Minutes  
1. December 13, 2023 Meeting 

 
III. Financial Report – Treasurer 

1. FY 2024 thru December (Revenue and Expense, Balance Sheet) 
2. FBO Fuel Sales Year to Date Comparisons (FY23 vs FY24) 

 
IV. Communications –  

1. FAA Corrective Action Plan Quarterly Update Memo 
2. Terminal Restaurant Space RFP 

 
V. Public Comment – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Board of Directors about any 

issue directly related to airport business. 
 

VI. Old Business 
 
VII. New Business  
 
VIII. Reports 

1. Board Chair Report 
a. Budget Drivers Discussion 

2. Board of Directors Reports  
 
IX. Executive Sessions (N/A) 
 
X. Adjournment (Next Board Meeting, January 31, 2024 Budget Workshop) 
 

Executive Session: On occasion, the Board of Directors discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to 
be considered in executive session. Executive sessions are not open to the public. The matters that are discussed in 
executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion. In order to go 
into executive session, a Director must make a motion in public. The motion must be recorded. An executive session is 
not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is 
finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6). Those applicable are:  

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

A. Discussion of personnel issues  
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached 
to real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature 
disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency  
D. Labor contracts  
E. Contemplated litigation  
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport 

Board of Directors - Meeting MINUTES 
December 13, 2023 5:30 P.M. 

Administrative Conference Room 80 Airport Drive, Auburn, Maine 
 

Attending: J LaBonte, L Allen, P Crowell, R Whiting, M Blais, R McCarthy        Absent: T Roy, M Garside 
Meeting called to order and quorum declared at 5:31pm 
                                                                                                               
I. Consent Items – All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one 

motion.  None 
 

II. Minutes  
1. November 8, 2023 Meeting 

Motion to approve the November 8, 2023 minutes by P Crowell, 2nd by R Whiting, Vote 5-0-1, R 
McCarthy Abstained, Motion carried. 
 

III. Financial Report – Treasurer 
1. FY 2024 thru November (Revenue and Expense, Balance Sheet) 

Motion to accept and place on file Treasurers report FY24 Through November 2023 by M Blais, 2nd 
by R McCarthy, Vote 6-0, Motion carried. 
 

2. FBO Fuel Sales Year to Date Comparisons (FY23 vs FY24) 
 
IV. Communications – None 

V. Public Comment – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Board of Directors about any 
issue directly related to airport business. 
 

VI. Old Business - None 
 
VII. New Business - None 
 
VIII. Reports 

1. Board Chair Report 
a. Update on Airport Staffing/Service Plan (Ops Supervisor & Ops Specialist Posted) 
b. Update on Winter Storm Response 
c. Update on Capital Projects (Self-Serve Fuel, Federally Funded Hangar) 

Permit has been issued for Self-Serve Fuel so new pricing can be secured. 
Hangar Project discrepancy between Consultant Proposal Cost and Received Cost 
Estimates 

d. Update on FAA Corrective Action Plan (Hangar Use Policy to be approved within 1 
year) 

e. Update on Airport Master Plan/Technical Advisory Committee Appointments 
f. FY25 Budget Development Timeline (Scheduled 1/31/2024 Budget Workshop) 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Budget presentation to the cities’ administrative teams is scheduled for February 
13, 2024 

2. Board of Directors Reports None 
 
IX. Executive Sessions 

Motion to move into Executive Session #1 by P Crowell, 2nd by R McCarthy, Vote 6-0, motion 
carried. 
Enter Executive Session 1 6:18pm 

1. Pursuant to 1 MRSA 405(6)c – Real Estate Negotiations (White Hangar, 45 White Hangar 
Drive) 

Return from Executive Session 1 6:28pm 
Public Action:  Motion authorizing the Board Chair to negotiate a lease of the White Hangar to 
Sunbird Aviation by M Blais, 2nd by R McCarthy, Vote 6-0, Motion carried. 
Motion to move into Executive Session #2 by R McCarthy, 2nd by R Whiting, Vote 6-0, motion 
carried. 
Enter Executive Session #2 6:33pm 

2. Pursuant to 1 MRSA 405(6)a – Discussion of Personnel Issues 
Return from Executive Session #2 at 6:41pm 

 No Action 
 
X. Adjournment (Holiday Open House December 20, 2023; Next Board Meeting, January 10, 2024) 
 Motion to adjourn by P Crowell, 2nd by R Whiting, Vote 6-0, motion carried, Meeting End 6:41pm 
 

Executive Session: On occasion, the Board of Directors discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to 
be considered in executive session. Executive sessions are not open to the public. The matters that are discussed in 
executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion. In order to go 
into executive session, a Director must make a motion in public. The motion must be recorded. An executive session is 
not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is 
finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6). Those applicable are:  
A. Discussion of personnel issues  
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached 
to real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature 
disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency  
D. Labor contracts  
E. Contemplated litigation  
 



CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/05/2024 15:05
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 13

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9000     Airport Operations                    APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

9000 Airport Operations                   

9000 420035  Fees - Fuel Flowage               -13,500           0     -13,500     -10,417.79            .00      -3,082.21   77.2%*
9000 420040  Fees - Landings                   -27,000           0     -27,000     -23,751.15            .00      -3,248.85   88.0%*
9000 429005  Christian Hill Mate              -100,000           0    -100,000     -48,026.54            .00     -51,973.46   48.0%*
9000 429025  Rental Fees                      -207,500           0    -207,500     -67,934.72            .00    -139,565.28   32.7%*

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                         -348,000           0    -348,000    -150,130.20            .00    -197,869.80   43.1%

     TOTAL Airport Operations                 -348,000           0    -348,000    -150,130.20            .00    -197,869.80   43.1%

9001 Airport Personnel                    

9001 611000  Regular Salaries                  262,035           0     262,035      70,026.84            .00     192,008.16   26.7%
9001 613000  Overtime                            4,000           0       4,000       1,194.93            .00       2,805.07   29.9%
9001 617020  Fringe Benefits                   159,620           0     159,620      40,602.17            .00     119,017.83   25.4%
9001 617030  Professional Develo                 6,000           0       6,000       1,621.75            .00       4,378.25   27.0%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          431,655           0     431,655     113,445.69            .00     318,209.31   26.3%

     TOTAL Airport Personnel                   431,655           0     431,655     113,445.69            .00     318,209.31   26.3%

9002 Airport Operations                   

9002 628000  Contract Services                   9,000           0       9,000      23,441.92            .00     -14,441.92  260.5%*
9002 633030  Fuels and Oil for V                20,000           0      20,000      15,840.18            .00       4,159.82   79.2%
9002 633040  Snow and Ice Contro                18,000           0      18,000            .00            .00      18,000.00     .0%
9002 641100  Utilities                         125,500           0     125,500      32,048.38            .00      93,451.62   25.5%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          172,500           0     172,500      71,330.48            .00     101,169.52   41.4%

     TOTAL Airport Operations                  172,500           0     172,500      71,330.48            .00     101,169.52   41.4%

9003 Airport Maintenance                  

9003 628000  PS - Gen/Profession                     0           0           0          30.00            .00         -30.00  100.0%*

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=UIFDdxlEKpJFpJ6mhJD4TbUHnmxVjZPqxRykV7YcewMSZi%2B8ZtU7R4ArWcojp14N
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=92An4OwFtMjY8zuMAtio0TudwSSP8o3JIyX8BcJcEaU3okIpEqGe1CDHxTYonAt1
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Q0rRzinFPnmRJCOmg550xKxvFtSU9yONGzMT4UOoWAXpqxyuSYk3%2Fb1H67%2BE%2FAoe
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=HbSLBxPcPl5CeNpd78QCa%2FoJIetBxoVGz5Tw4oc1pK%2Bddh2YZr%2B14IYoWVe0Z05o
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=f7Ij3%2FszE%2FAKGJa1AowV1DbGx%2BxqKUSRk44zvbxc%2F5FzTsgLH3Tp2YZm%2Bvp8CCTw
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2FWYUyuy4tCG8mrNdmKg3LWZKf42l57DfLXsOXqKcmdBTBLsEvta1kW2g247wKpED
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5AkZt6ASStFnMgm0lqrtcb8mRyJ3cbgLALY%2Fbl7MLUVCHJdDU05ORwYFbjHfd2nq
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0X9%2F9wrb5txqHRfJJq0G%2B1btVNVK%2BtBBKvg9mYfafi7nZFzSjzsCyrPQPdSElbvL
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RsxmmOlS4g409OvqxtmqNPrGffxpfSt3rIjzI5VyZYNsw2dmU195C3FsDIeNlB8Y
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wrw7dibLZ1Vu4muy7rLWjP%2Fu92lIXRdpJn76Pv%2FpUKgmVoIm3ptNWWo95xqZ%2BTG%2B
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wmcf5LTmTroOdCoT1HHUse9X5MDF1OV01lGfMONLx2am11Uiz86jCf%2BIJQji186E
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5wcOjtc5caMuQBU0gMoyekvQH6dWPxqAsaP%2F54m0ZJhy%2FDj%2BBjG68r4HH4R95hmm
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ArkybVQnQXl90SaIB4y65Fl4a68TAnneDtv9kF04RGvE3CvXDjJDZvtR0Gk98saU


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/05/2024 15:05
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 13

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9000     Airport Operations                    APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

9003 628019  Building Maintenanc                23,100           0      23,100       8,024.76            .00      15,075.24   34.7%
9003 628020  Vehicle Maintenance                17,831           0      17,831       5,011.41            .00      12,819.59   28.1%
9003 628021  Radio Maintenance                   1,700           0       1,700         785.75            .00         914.25   46.2%
9003 628038  Electrical Maintena                 7,000           0       7,000       1,089.11            .00       5,910.89   15.6%
9003 628039  Airfield Maintenanc                30,750           0      30,750            .00            .00      30,750.00     .0%
9003 633041  Computer/Office Mac                20,500           0      20,500       2,284.34            .00      18,215.66   11.1%
9003 633042  Pavement Maintenanc                 6,000           0       6,000      14,853.52            .00      -8,853.52  247.6%*

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          106,881           0     106,881      32,078.89            .00      74,802.11   30.0%

     TOTAL Airport Maintenance                 106,881           0     106,881      32,078.89            .00      74,802.11   30.0%

9004 Airport Administration               

9004 620000  Advertising and  Pr                 6,500           0       6,500       1,224.00            .00       5,276.00   18.8%
9004 628000  Professional Servic                35,800           0      35,800      10,970.55            .00      24,829.45   30.6%
9004 628016  Legal Services                     45,000           0      45,000      12,830.82            .00      32,169.18   28.5%
9004 628041  Hangar Lease                       12,000           0      12,000            .00            .00      12,000.00     .0%
9004 633000  Office Supplies                     4,100           0       4,100         425.85            .00       3,674.15   10.4%
9004 640000  Telephone and Inter                 5,700           0       5,700       4,755.26            .00         944.74   83.4%
9004 645000  Insurance Premiums                 40,200           0      40,200       9,320.74            .00      30,879.26   23.2%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          149,300           0     149,300      39,527.22            .00     109,772.78   26.5%

     TOTAL Airport Administration              149,300           0     149,300      39,527.22            .00     109,772.78   26.5%

9005 Airport Other Income                 

9005 401600  Municipal Subsidy                -410,000           0    -410,000    -307,500.00            .00    -102,500.00   75.0%*
9005 420063  Service Fees                         -500           0        -500     -16,420.76            .00      15,920.76 3284.2%
9005 422000  Investment Income                  -1,000           0      -1,000      -2,955.02            .00       1,955.02  295.5%
9005 429013  Sale of Assets                    -75,000           0     -75,000    -206,938.26            .00     131,938.26  275.9%
9005 429019  FLIGHT SIMULATOR                   -6,500           0      -6,500        -253.50            .00      -6,246.50    3.9%*

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                         -493,000           0    -493,000    -534,067.54            .00      41,067.54  108.3%

     TOTAL Airport Other Income               -493,000           0    -493,000    -534,067.54            .00      41,067.54  108.3%

9010 Airport-FBO                          

9010 420035  Fees - Fuel  and Oi              -661,372           0    -661,372    -488,881.87            .00    -172,490.13   73.9%*

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=sgLgDS%2FgmJuBTJOY70Yevl9ZQZiy4rZMC5BAlDl0LXWwlvbYrwwY1leUt1uT45CJ
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=HvnpcnawUe3UwDo12Stczw5%2FpL%2BO6GAbbE%2FeLUIJXhATbNluCv1%2BCutHgAh5Zb%2FM
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=j4LNDsqYp0%2BnDMwroQf7fkh4MuGAC3ig1SuiFLBHlxGyvMA2MLsp6jZgAWLQTx2u
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tkMcfKRAspa9UaRGCMXpc7EeiyY6PsM0%2BArEZ1s2ZFa4uRw%2Fylq6ommaYVZrwJmZ
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ufmG39GI4i81B20WhG%2FJrGNMtekyLDbFX50dv55gJaYeYau%2B%2BoxodTakeXwi2yxK
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jzKZ%2FDxdFvI4MCSAs5uZN246o%2FAgmY9tXNZWxhqWFIJOi0IPVZ0Uw6HHUOidngVa
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ksH%2BM3uY7xbTFgnwhrN9ti2sbb%2Fu6P1p42dLm8UW%2FG0MwP9cBzUnuKPuWzU6xQDr
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3Ti2yoLIpbhl7QLwwwbIW3Yz77eqadt4hkfKy2DcH3IkDlKHlNZ1d3xSifi%2FZMBU
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jom7ko2z%2FTnF6Vn6h1Y7hRzsqlT3sWdZHEXh2GomSGBSCZi8m%2Fi9fmBTkuG6jfVl
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=MsG%2BfTeiVkXju3PIBo3s8WsXqFpdqsc1J3mJxCJ3Ux1w4neBZqN%2Bd4PDM6T%2Fo%2F0X
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rm90WYxftntRSvviOJXDw5BznIcUblfzDypfzvqzwpVBpGVkp%2FjrkyR%2FQs3ScS9D
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=tb1iUyYBKKX6MGvG3rha8rPPbOvwzsoU5ygpIMMFOUmLZ8ogUHo%2BzkUAzpZSMOEG
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=nEAwVDvztsk3WKkGfT7aqf7NWJoGwooRflSY1FxvlJ58HEUHHJ%2BCKFl3%2B805EHP%2B
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZOyLhm7z%2BTZAv8rQ6ittkUbWB396rInugcciYBy%2F1PzyCBn2oA4jl0URPiO9VNaa
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=faiy4zO8m7HTNCIQp3OZ0pEOsghpilAM8iVY%2BgFDGtU35Sf%2FE8WIBu%2FbNwfDtJPq
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2GVVcs%2FOQxWIzsHbca8TRZHcqRn%2FUqR%2Bio%2Fs7Co0KNBqi4cREvmGxmsx1Ta5%2BdoS
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7nZS9H031xvS4iZEplwCqFeW6rLahgl228ztEL09Gjc9YEPtdXKmvijbMOUB6%2BpR
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=BNdq9pt2VMZwO9d1f0WR5%2FVggV8gepJs1VJhMPNCfo%2B8ogkKdI0c%2FiNb1YclZHoB
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uXtyORnP35HhR%2F4zkUfHj9Ajzy0e9fhY1i4Py2HE0NNsbogoifqypN50I8BBGsMx
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=UloYiBbS0DFw21Nyz7IwOkbfXIN1qXMGE5R1Pes5upnlBFlJBTWRMEkY9S8ZCiX9


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/05/2024 15:05
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      3

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 13

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9000     Airport Operations                    APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

9010 420051   Tie Down/Hangar/Co               -50,000           0     -50,000     -45,448.76            .00      -4,551.24   90.9%*
9010 420059  Fees-Catering                           0           0           0        -167.58            .00         167.58  100.0%
9010 420060  After Hour Call Out                -5,625           0      -5,625      -5,755.00            .00         130.00  102.3%
9010 420061  Flight Line Service                -6,620           0      -6,620      -3,352.84            .00      -3,267.16   50.6%*
9010 420064  Rental Car                         -3,340           0      -3,340      -1,532.38            .00      -1,807.62   45.9%*
9010 420915  Service Lease                      -7,200           0      -7,200      -3,600.00            .00      -3,600.00   50.0%*
9010 633047  PROCESSING FEE                          0           0           0       3,621.20            .00      -3,621.20  100.0%*

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                         -734,157           0    -734,157    -545,117.23            .00    -189,039.77   74.3%

     TOTAL Airport-FBO                        -734,157           0    -734,157    -545,117.23            .00    -189,039.77   74.3%

9015 Services (FBO) Expenses              

9015 611000  Regular Salaries                  150,000           0     150,000      33,130.41            .00     116,869.59   22.1%
9015 613000  Overtime                            4,000           0       4,000          31.98            .00       3,968.02     .8%
9015 620000  Advertising                         1,200           0       1,200        -630.00            .00       1,830.00  -52.5%
9015 628000  Prof/Contracted Ser                     0           0           0      71,735.43            .00     -71,735.43  100.0%*
9015 628021  Plant  Equipment                    2,065           0       2,065         206.46            .00       1,858.54   10.0%
9015 628044  Ground Support Equi                16,000           0      16,000      10,153.88            .00       5,846.12   63.5%
9015 628071  Fuel Flowage                       12,500           0      12,500       8,606.86            .00       3,893.14   68.9%
9015 633030  Fuels & Oils                      525,000      61,876     586,876     367,626.69      30,243.44     189,006.20   67.8%
9015 645000  Insurance Premiums                  2,500           0       2,500            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          713,265      61,876     775,141     490,861.71      30,243.44     254,036.18   67.2%

     TOTAL Services (FBO) Expenses             713,265      61,876     775,141     490,861.71      30,243.44     254,036.18   67.2%

     TOTAL Airport Operations                   -1,556      61,876      60,320    -482,070.98      30,243.44     512,147.87 -749.0%

                           TOTAL REVENUES   -1,575,157           0  -1,575,157  -1,232,936.17            .00    -342,220.83
                           TOTAL EXPENSES    1,573,601      61,876   1,635,477     750,865.19      30,243.44     854,368.70

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TNpttlg1EnMTe5p0CrBIpLYksv1cEELm%2FEoVTfj30Ol5bsmIbKTiDa47KVC3fR1%2F
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=nac0jvZuMgAzsVE84pE%2FW%2F44Uk0r7%2F5LWxHiqt3rcpswSRuAF1wVNSsX%2Fdl0p%2Foo
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=cxS2gHY3TwxHIyugbXuYXc1rXywwP%2F%2FouHF0%2FI3tBxe83hKgqJAEWLjyfEn46YP9
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=EgSzXqvA38B7K48F9mem%2FSNqNtmBJx6Kh1hWIm7oSbCt7bcFgdmxln9oaxq40GtJ
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=DCmT1ZHk%2FeI3kUiatGv1w%2BZEEXNRyW4BOHvgvVhuq6X3fIIVKq4Zw9RZYPouHggv
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RL28%2Fb58iGw%2Bj1ZIGcd5%2FWlvmieSL8QKgs3hLI1WLWExIPEZSaj4h4yV8KvGr1fm
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=v5DiZwnGjEVEtFlkanx8GAkjC2y7C9TplUnYdSIM89RFCU8Oo8m9At61XSXx5%2FaS
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=WmerHw5U3HkONdDmPL2l9tSml3API3BNqKwttp%2BJIBVLFhjD%2FbD1zSYCoNrAK9fb
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=IkO%2BnpFXN8kopyBZmibbQN3mf5w9mebWevhsoPy0yCRepowqvmUJVhhwhLpfnOhO
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7zec%2Fa1cU3xK0GfWUp%2BvpbsSP4%2F56xCAYN2htWZJBJzXKE6kyB5XvSKbu%2BecB6Q9
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Aesk7Ufevbl9B%2BwyUq70ynmSxLe3Z379EK5jyWBp4o8inb2l50fzkJRnGqertK37
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Ej21X%2BHOMwmyTI2I%2FdCSXW%2B0O3R2zaX4Cd5pm9J8qUpFek757AF1GbnCS0SW72zh
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=t9HkHjADVEDyoQ5KBsHs%2BJdAfciqt5UrgJAWFODHFaNCqfQqH8XBjtBgo7ZhLrO%2F
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Lv0R9j0Ts3wMGWTctk3KJZKtsVIE%2F%2F5va5LyvYVdWnaP%2FpbFvnu0xenYUf6KcsdQ
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Ro1%2FCemNqQPA8YaIT%2BSIsPmW6ckOSHfMYjHOGVwJaeDiZil8l%2F%2B8WbB97rJJtZhq
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=HfmVV5s10XyQQV4VUdUhPG%2BOgQu%2FtvB%2BPBaJ%2Ba2%2BVOgYplCjvrtBr3vtmQzW9Hn%2F


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/05/2024 15:05
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      4

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 13

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9020     Airport Capital Projects Fund         APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

9020 Airport Capital Projects             

9020 440025  Airport ILS Reimbur                     0           0           0      -3,500.03            .00       3,500.03  100.0%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                                0           0           0      -3,500.03            .00       3,500.03  100.0%

L18 L18-FUEL FARM                         

9020 650000 L18 Capital-  Fuel F                     0         332         332            .00         331.62            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL L18-FUEL FARM                             0         332         332            .00         331.62            .00  100.0%

L23 AVGAS SELF SERVICE                    

9020 401600 L23 Municipal Subsid                     0           0           0     -28,200.00            .00      28,200.00  100.0%
9020 650000 L23 Capital AVGAS SE                     0           0           0      31,700.00            .00     -31,700.00  100.0%*

     TOTAL AVGAS SELF SERVICE                        0           0           0       3,500.00            .00      -3,500.00  100.0%

PR022 Terminal Ramp Project               

9020 650000 PR022 Terminal Ramp                      0      13,341      13,341            .00      13,341.32            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL Terminal Ramp Project                     0      13,341      13,341            .00      13,341.32            .00  100.0%

PR023 Taxiway B Reconstruction            

9020 650000 PR023 Taxiway B Reco                     0      47,620      47,620            .00      47,620.07            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL Taxiway B Reconstruction                  0      47,620      47,620            .00      47,620.07            .00  100.0%

PR024 PR024-Runway Design                 

9020 650000 PR024 Runway Design                      0       5,517       5,517            .00       5,516.89            .00  100.0%

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rqX3N3OHWmsJlgVR91UST8151mMA2KOcX5L76nfdGfw00P0JaC6JtJznhx393SmH
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=SmE73migSAcQ8nV%2BVFLC%2BQoQhMmgRG8NVrXAC0REElZoDojlAkjUginspuB4eAAU
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=i9RFytKhxGDAlo0xCRgflGuMhwIK2GhPI6BgRLl38IwSTiaUJyoX%2F7HsvD0br%2F5o
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2Bsq47Ha92cVWRR80Nrb0oCARvOWgec2fpC16ey84S35i5NadgcYgZFlV0AJ89m0I
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=odd23CHTTY9%2Bq2OGj8KgbUuFzColrnSbaYfHujbO3PXXI1hb8fTuWiiV3AYp0lcV
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=xZASbUN5Tl91OZjFJsdGXTYmGfKjy1cQsz4H3Qyi5uJtamPQaFtOjDnAfqwzaXBU
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4suzJ8HsUCbssI1UGwFdkjGqOBzoifBTcjhD0KfX3%2FalZj1N%2F%2BeJM1OZrFUJ9FVi


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/05/2024 15:05
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      5

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 13

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9020     Airport Capital Projects Fund         APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

     TOTAL PR024-Runway Design                       0       5,517       5,517            .00       5,516.89            .00  100.0%

PR026 PR026-RUNWAY REHAB                  

9020 440000 PR026 Local Airport                      0           0           0    -253,234.26            .00     253,234.26  100.0%
9020 650000 PR026 Capital-RUNWAY                     0     176,658     176,658            .00     176,658.23            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL PR026-RUNWAY REHAB                        0     176,658     176,658    -253,234.26     176,658.23     253,234.26  -43.3%

PR027 PR027-NAVAIDS REIMB                 

9020 440000 PR027 Local Airport                      0           0           0     -79,421.98            .00      79,421.98  100.0%
9020 650000 PR027 Capital-NAVAID                     0           0           0      29,326.10            .00     -29,326.10  100.0%*

     TOTAL PR027-NAVAIDS REIMB                       0           0           0     -50,095.88            .00      50,095.88  100.0%

PR028 RECONSTRUCT 17/35 TAXI B & J        

9020 440000 PR028 RECONSTRUCT-TA                     0           0           0    -325,013.11            .00     325,013.11  100.0%
9020 650000 PR028 Capital-Recons                     0     132,834     132,834            .00     132,834.15            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL RECONSTRUCT 17/35 TAXI B & J              0     132,834     132,834    -325,013.11     132,834.15     325,013.11 -144.7%

PR032 RAMP EAST APRON                     

9020 440000 PR032 RAMP EAST APRO                     0           0           0    -114,709.18            .00     114,709.18  100.0%

     TOTAL RAMP EAST APRON                           0           0           0    -114,709.18            .00     114,709.18  100.0%

PRO32 EAST APRON                          

9020 650000 PRO32 EAST APRON                         0           0           0      11,421.90            .00     -11,421.90  100.0%*

     TOTAL EAST APRON                                0           0           0      11,421.90            .00     -11,421.90  100.0%

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=lnBq0AVeO5ALD%2Bm9datpnL%2Bi8U%2BrTxvLRNJr%2FxFm%2By1dadBDNMcVsDn6dh7tQHEA
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=xdKjhYwMn%2F3koyNj3AS2peEMRQrYkULTktdSP0bvaaabc9Hp4cUpbuVApS3KDy2k
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uXolR2SeVYJ%2BxOtwCpSibxlMkRtdmInNJw1kwffaS4Dm2RG8W5V9CIFMsnsrVv8%2B
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=bDQBKXwv9CpsX4TkY1pZqsxrSE0a8SO9uL3IVdUhwc%2BFyXGFnBqkoZUOnvoyss9%2B
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ixb3s8TXw0cQ%2Frp36qyXMIAMRbU90W5Entd4a%2Bvm6tQgKMS51RE1K0MxSPD7J2y1
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rOaZuVc2uVjH2AS52mZ0BEA%2BIdmlCFYLxaL9xa1YIsAlN3J1hpUsHLMfAjY7jRoC
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jISrGjVcWLOqsWr4zrWZ5dO22DzzZhQsVdOI%2F%2BeHyClzW9Al1dpJ1cJdv4RDjZol
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=rzb4mKxK2NUj%2FJm9h2PjcziGjDo78QpPzXLJX0c0rrsiXXQmSoizGEyVQ%2FSDj8IQ


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/05/2024 15:05
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      6

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 13

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9020     Airport Capital Projects Fund         APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

PRO35 PRO35-AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE    

9020 440000 PRO35 Local Airport                      0           0           0     -30,226.50            .00      30,226.50  100.0%
9020 650000 PRO35 AIRPORT MASTER                     0           0           0      42,383.00     346,617.00    -389,000.00  100.0%*

     TOTAL PRO35-AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDA            0           0           0      12,156.50     346,617.00    -358,773.50  100.0%

REA HTA ENGINEERING SERVICES E APRON      

9020 650000 REA EAST APRON                           0      46,122      46,122      43,127.81            .00       2,994.40   93.5%

     TOTAL HTA ENGINEERING SERVICES E APR            0      46,122      46,122      43,127.81            .00       2,994.40   93.5%

     TOTAL Airport Capital Projects                  0     422,424     422,424    -676,346.25     722,919.28     375,851.46   11.0%

     TOTAL Airport Capital Projects Fund             0     422,424     422,424    -676,346.25     722,919.28     375,851.46   11.0%

                           TOTAL REVENUES            0           0           0    -834,305.06            .00     834,305.06
                           TOTAL EXPENSES            0     422,424     422,424     157,958.81     722,919.28    -458,453.60

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=gDk1ZizV%2FvNiDhIxn%2BqG8yq4yQNC%2BlRxd0lUHurgiJkpYAoUAahRQYSgPWcevdBj
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2FCZ%2FaIQYmBOt7fuwqfNQufUy9q3GfvadGjqYunqHhdUlul%2BQt4vHxRvoOZ%2Fr2CDe
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=66%2FvyAuQJZjvjnb26%2BgSpTEfkLiQPIkNihxh20DIfNNHhKtFtDOF91kiUe4YCw1N


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/05/2024 15:05
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      7

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 13

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9030     Airport Land Fund                     APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

9030 Airport Land Fund                    

9030 659070  Airport Land                            0       7,000       7,000            .00       7,000.00            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                                0       7,000       7,000            .00       7,000.00            .00  100.0%

     TOTAL Airport Land Fund                         0       7,000       7,000            .00       7,000.00            .00  100.0%

90306022 Airport Investment Income          

90306022 422002  Investment Inco                     0           0           0      -2,106.19            .00       2,106.19  100.0%

     TOTAL Airport Investment Income                 0           0           0      -2,106.19            .00       2,106.19  100.0%

     TOTAL Airport Land Fund                         0       7,000       7,000      -2,106.19       7,000.00       2,106.19   69.9%

                           TOTAL REVENUES            0           0           0      -2,106.19            .00       2,106.19
                           TOTAL EXPENSES            0       7,000       7,000            .00       7,000.00            .00

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=hlIqjheMV3Hf3mChR8xN0V8M4%2Fde1eR9UgCw6AEyT5SP032OetesuMUQbuapWb3u
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ejEm1XoDeorlycP9AOaEA1LgdPdxEeuM45FYdWS1fAvGhqp63DKLHO8R6TtYYL0A


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/05/2024 15:05
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      8

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2024 13

                                              ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
                                               APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

                              GRAND TOTAL       -1,556     491,301     489,745  -1,160,523.42     760,162.72     890,105.52  -81.7%

                                         ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Gina Klemanski **                                          



CITY OF AUBURN

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2024  6

Report generated: 01/05/2024 13:15
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      1

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 9000 Airport Operations                                              FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

ASSETS
             9000     011010       Airport Checking                         10,877.53           633,010.50
             9000     011030       Cash-Petty Cash                                .00               700.00
             9000     011140       Interest Receivable                            .00                  .01
             9000     011530       Accounts Receivable                        -356.89            35,994.42
             9000     011545       Lease Receivable                               .00         3,028,598.23
             9000     011810       Prepaid Expenses                               .00            15,162.01
             9000     011900       INVENTORY FOR RESALE                           .00            88,568.46
             9000     012110       Land                                           .00         1,717,208.27
             9000     012111       Land Improvements                              .00        18,381,864.81
             9000     012112       Construction In Progress                       .00         8,782,874.81
             9000     012310       Buildings & Bldg Improvements                  .00         4,458,442.82
             9000     012410       Machinery & Equipment                          .00         1,514,774.52
             9000     012900       Accumulated Depreciation                       .00       -17,154,817.76
             9000     013000       DEF OUTFLOW-NET PENSION                        .00            35,342.94
             9000     016000       DUE TO / DUE FROM                         4,858.50       -12,591,389.35
                   TOTAL ASSETS                                             15,379.14         8,946,334.69 
LIABILITIES                                                                                                
             9000     024210       Accounts Payable                               .00           -95,544.80
             9000     024230       Loan Payable-City of Auburn                    .00          -599,531.67
             9000     024231       Loan Payable-City of Lewiston                  .00          -599,531.67
             9000     024611       Compensated Absences                           .00           -34,747.63
             9000     024710       Federal Withholding Taxes                -1,499.23            -1,499.23
             9000     024711       State Withholding Taxes                    -671.00              -671.00
             9000     024712       FICA Withholding Taxes                   -1,560.48            -1,560.48
             9000     024713       Medicare Withholding Taxes                 -364.96              -364.96
             9000     024730       ICMA Deferred Comp-City                      55.00              -220.00
             9000     024734       ME State Retirement                       1,292.04              -757.98
             9000     024750       Life Insurance-City                            .00                 8.70
             9000     024758       MMA Health Ins-Airport                   -2,461.92            -8,236.51
             9000     024765       Dental                                         .00                69.59
             9000     024772       Flex Spending-Airport                          .00                10.00
             9000     024773       Vision                                         .00               -32.65
             9000     024829       DUE TO STATE - SALES TAX                      3.75              -149.37
             9000     025000       DEF INFLOW NET PENSION                         .00           -89,512.00
             9000     026000       NET PENSION LIABILITY                          .00             5,927.00
             9000     029000       Deferred Inflow - Leases                       .00        -2,965,603.87
                   TOTAL LIABILITIES                                        -5,206.80        -4,391,948.53 
FUND BALANCE                                                                                               
             9000     037000       Ctrl Total - Encumbrances               -69,376.33            63,525.88
             9000     037100       FB ASSIGNED CITY                               .00        -1,836,398.00
             9000     037104       FB UNASSIGNED                                  .00        -2,226,191.89
             9000     037201       CTRL TOTAL-BUD FB DESIGNATED             69,376.33           -63,525.88
             9000     037301       Ctrl Total - Bud FB Undesignat                 .00            60,320.33
             9000     047000       Ctrl Total - Revenues                   -57,889.18        -1,197,775.95
             9000     047001       CONTROL - ESTIMATED REVENUE                    .00         1,575,157.00
             9000     057000       CTRL TOTAL-EXPENDITURES                  47,716.84           705,979.68
             9000     057001       CTRL TOTAL-APPROPRIATIONS                      .00        -1,635,477.33



CITY OF AUBURN

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2024  6

Report generated: 01/05/2024 13:15
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      2

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 9000 Airport Operations                                              FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE                                                                                               
                   TOTAL FUND BALANCE                                      -10,172.34        -4,554,386.16
         TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE                                  -15,379.14        -8,946,334.69 



CITY OF AUBURN

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2024  6

Report generated: 01/05/2024 13:15
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      3

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 9020 Airport Capital Projects Fund                                   FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

ASSETS
             9020     011530       Accounts Receivable                            .00           756,092.93
             9020     016000       Due to/from Other Funds                  -4,858.50        13,111,948.97
                   TOTAL ASSETS                                             -4,858.50        13,868,041.90 
FUND BALANCE                                                                                               
             9020     037000       Ctrl Total - Encumbrances               357,415.00           733,717.28
             9020     037104       FB-UNASSIGNED-CTY                              .00       -13,151,571.55
             9020     037201       Ctrl Total - Bud FB Designated         -357,415.00          -733,717.28
             9020     037301       Ctrl Total - Bud FB Undesignat                 .00           422,424.49
             9020     047000       Ctrl Total - Revenues                   -30,226.50          -834,305.06
             9020     057000       Ctrl Total - Expenditures                35,085.00           117,834.71
             9020     057001       Ctrl Total - Appropriations                    .00          -422,424.49
                   TOTAL FUND BALANCE                                        4,858.50       -13,868,041.90 
         TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE                                    4,858.50       -13,868,041.90 



CITY OF AUBURN

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2024  6

Report generated: 01/05/2024 13:15
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      4

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 9030 Airport Land Fund                                               FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

ASSETS
             9030     011111       Investments-MM-Airpark                         .00           763,276.74
             9030     016000       Due to/from Other Funds                        .00          -531,559.62
                   TOTAL ASSETS                                                   .00           231,717.12 
FUND BALANCE                                                                                               
             9030     037000       Ctrl Total - Encumbrances                      .00             7,000.00
             9030     037104       FB-UNASSIGNED-CTY                              .00          -229,610.93
             9030     037201       Ctrl Total - Bud FB Designated                 .00            -7,000.00
             9030     037301       Ctrl Total - Bud FB Undesignat                 .00             7,000.00
             9030     047000       Ctrl Total - Revenues                          .00            -2,106.19
             9030     057001       Ctrl Total - Appropriations                    .00            -7,000.00
                   TOTAL FUND BALANCE                                             .00          -231,717.12 
         TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE                                         .00          -231,717.12 

                                         ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Gina Klemanski **                                          



Product Pay Type 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Avgas 100LL Cash 12151.2 13030.2 8828.01 6421.4 5551.5 11580.6
Avgas 100LL Credit Card 8324.65 8162.9 7586.3 6111.9 6675.95 4585.8

TOTAL 100LL 20475.85 21193.1 16414.31 12533.3 12227.45 16166.4
Jet A Fuel Cash 33050.5 39449.3 10025 9078 3185 1552
Jet A Fuel Contract Fuel 24990 39700 31543 44098 34828.62 58559.5
Jet A Fuel Credit Card 17566.1 12677 6801 14096 15808 15971

TOTAL Jet A 75606.6 91826.3 48369 67272 53821.62 76082.5

*FY2020 included over 16,000 in Jet A sales to Elite Airways

Quantity (gallons) by Fiscal Year

Auburn Air Center - Fuel Sales Comparison for July - December (FY19 to FY24)



 

 
80 Airport Drive, Auburn, ME   04210 

(207) 786 0631   FAX: (207) 782 3024 
                                                                     www.flytomaine.com 

 

Jorge E. Pantelli 
Airport Compliance Specialist 
Office of Airport Compliance and Management Analysis, ACO-100 
Federal Aviation Administration 
800 Independence Ave, SW 
Washington, DC 20591 
 

January 5, 2023 
 
Dear Mr. Pantelli, 
 
The Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport (“airport”), as a follow up to your Land Use In-
spection Report dated April 21, 2023, based on a site visit completed on July 25-26, 2022, 
submits this second status report on our Corrective Action Plan provided to the FAA on 
June 20, 2023. 
 
Each FAA requested action is noted below with a status update. 
 

• FAA – Airport to coordinate finalization of release requests for 911 Antenna and 
State drainage easements.  

o LEW Response – The airport has on-boarded McFarland Johnson as our 
new engineering consulting firm.  In reviewing the most recent ALP, the 
most recent Exhibit A, and completing an on-site review of all airport prop-
erty to ensure all non-aeronautical uses were documented and properly 
accounted for, it was discovered that an Auburn Sewer District line across 
airport property (from Lewiston Junction Road to Hotel Road) and an Au-
burn Sewer District pump station (off Lewiston Junction Road) had not 
been released from aeronautical uses.  In fact, while the sewer line has an 
executed easement from 2017, the pump station has no recorded rights.  
There was some correspondence discovered between the FAA and a previ-
ous airport manager from years ago, but the airport never executed the re-
quests for release, and they had not been identified in the Land Use In-
spection. We have been in touch with the Auburn Sewer District to ensure 
they are aware, and they know that the pump station property will need to 
have an appraisal completed to determine fair-market value and poten-
tially a “look back” period for use of airport property without compensa-
tion.  We are proceeding to complete release requests for these two, 
newly identified areas, in addition to the Lewiston-Auburn 911 and 



 

 
80 Airport Drive, Auburn, ME   04210 

(207) 786 0631   FAX: (207) 782 3024 
                                                                     www.flytomaine.com 

 

MaineDOT easements.  Pending appraisal availability, we will update the 
targeted date to March 31, 2024. 

 
• FAA - The airport is required to complete an inspection of all hangars with FAA 

present and provide a report of inspection findings with actions to the FAA upon 
inspection completion.  

o LEW Response – The airport completed an inspection of all hangars (public 
and private) over the course of two days.  Day one, November 13th, al-
lowed access to all but two t-hangar condos.  Day two, December 6th, al-
lowed access to those two remaining units.  The airport board received a 
report on the inspection during its December 13th meeting.  A formal re-
port out and next steps following this inspection is in draft will be provided 
to the FAA for review and feedback by January 31st, with the final report 
being provided to all tenants for review and action as we institute an an-
nual inspection/compliance review.  A key element will be ensuring the air-
port has a means to access all hangars (copies of keys or key box codes) as 
well as tenant sign-off on a Hangar Use Policy to address any non-aeronau-
tical use that is occurring. 

 
• FAA - The airport is to review these two leases (TIM Corp and Bel Air Condo Associa-

tion) and Skyward Aviation’s activity fee status and provide remedies to ensure these 
leases and activities are in compliance with Grant Assurance 5 - Rights and Powers, 
the Airport Revenue Policy, and other noted concerns. The airport is also strongly en-
couraged to review all leases and provide the FAA with any further findings or reme-
dies.  

o LEW Response –  
 Lease Review – In the review of all airport leases and use of airport 

property, the Auburn Sewer District finding was made and was de-
tailed earlier in this memo.   The airport has developed a new oper-
ating rights agreement and lease template, with technical assis-
tance from Allison Navia of Raivan LLC, and executed its first agree-
ments under the new Minimum Standards using these new tem-
plates.  

 TIM CORP Lease – The June 20 CAP timeline remains the plan of ac-
tion. 

 Bel Air Condo Association Lease – The June 20 CAP timeline re-
mains the plan of action. 



 

 
80 Airport Drive, Auburn, ME   04210 

(207) 786 0631   FAX: (207) 782 3024 
                                                                     www.flytomaine.com 

 

 Skyward Aviation – The June 20 CAP timeline remains the plan of 
action.  The new Minimum Standards set the framework to negoti-
ate and execute a formal agreement with Skyward Aviation. 

 
• Review Minimum Standards and Rules and regulations with FAA. Provide infor-

mation as to the status of the documents and their approval by the Board.  
o LEW Response – The Board had enlisted the support of Allison Navia (San-

ford Seacoast and Eastern Slopes Airports Manager) as a consultant to as-
sist in the minimum standards update process.  We completed an October 
board of directors’ workshop, a late October public meeting with airport 
businesses and stakeholders which was very well attended, and the Board 
adopted the new Minimum Standards on November 8th, 2023.  A copy of 
those are included with this memo. 

The Board of Directors of the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport, and its sponsors (the 
Cities of Auburn and Lewiston, Maine), appreciate the FAA’s engagement and counsel as 
we strengthen our operations and advance our shared goals of safety of flight, conform-
ance with Grant Assurances, and the financial sustainability for this asset.  We look for-
ward to your feedback. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jonathan P. LaBonte 
Board Chair 
 
CC: Amy Quam, Airports Compliance Specialist – New England Region 



AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 

MINIMUM 
STANDARDS 

AND 
PROCEDURES 

FOR THE 
LEASE AND 

USE OF 
PROPERTY 

AND 
FACILITIES

As adopted by the Auburn – Lewiston Board of Directors August 9, 2018; and, revised 
and accepted by a vote of the Board effective 11/8/2023. 



Page 1 of 17 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

1. Introduction 2 

2. Objective, Policy, and Application 2 

a. Objective 2 

b. Policy 2 

c. Application 3 

d. Related Materials 3 

3. Minimum Standards for Specific Activities 4 

I. Line services (aircraft fuels and oil dispensing) 4 

II. Flight training 5 

III. Aircraft charter and air taxi 6 

IV. Aircraft sales (new and/or used) 7 

V. Aircraft rentals 8 

VI. Airframe and power plant repair facilities 8 

VII. Aircraft painting and/ or repair or initial outfitting of interiors 9 

VIII. Specialized aircraft repair service - radios, propellers, instruments, and

accessories. 
10 

IX. Aircraft parking and storage 10 

X. Specialized Aeronautical Service Operator (SASO) 11 

XI. Flying Clubs 12 

XII. Independent Operators 12 

XIII. Any other activities not specifically provided for in these Minimum Standards,

including non-aeronautical activities, will be subject to negotiation. 
13 

4. Policy for Through-The-Fence Operations 13 

5. Basic Terms & Conditions: Leases/ Contracts/ Operating Rights Agreements 13 

a. General Terms 13 

b. Terms for Facilities 14 

c. Terms for Operator Services 15 

d. Policy for Insurance 16 

6. Application Procedures 16 

Appendix A Definitions 

Appendix B Minimum Insurance Requirements 

Appendix C Application Form 

Appendix D FBO Summary Table 

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 2 of 17 

1. Introduction

The municipalities of Auburn and Lewiston jointly own the Auburn – Lewiston Municipal Airport,
hereinafter referred to as “Airport”. The Airport is operated, maintained and managed by the
Airport Board of Directors, hereinafter referred to as “Board”. Per Interlocal Agreement, the Board
may appoint an Airport Director. The point of contact for the Airport is the Airport Director whose
contact information can be obtained online at www.flytomaine.com. If the position of Airport
Director is not been filled, the Chair of the Board of Directors will be the point of contact and
throughout this document when the Airport Director is referenced it can be interchanged with the
Chair of the Board.

It is the intent of the Board to make the Airport available for the use and benefit of the public and 
make it available to all types, kinds, and classes or aeronautical activity on reasonable terms and 
without unjust discrimination. 

2. Objective, Policy, and Application

a. Objective
The Airport, as a federally obligated airport, agrees to make available the opportunity to
engage in commercial aeronautical and non-aeronautical activities by persons, firms, or legal
entities that meet reasonable minimum standards and procedures as set forth in this
document, hereinafter referred to as “Standards”. The objectives of these Standards are to:
1. Promote safety in all airport activities;
2. Maintain a high quality of service for all airport users;
3. Protect the public from unlicensed and unauthorized products or services;
4. Enhance the availability of services for all airport users; and,
5. Promote the orderly development of airport land.

The intent herein is to categorically identify those minimum standards and procedures by 
which all persons, firms or other legal entities conducting commercial (revenue producing) or 
noncommercial aeronautical activities at the airport shall conduct their respective operations. 

b. Policy
1. In exchange for the opportunity to engage in an aeronautical activity, persons,

firms, or entities engaged in aeronautical activity agree to comply with the
Standards developed by the Airport. All Applicants shall meet the Standards, as
now in existence or as may hereafter be modified or amended, as recited herein
and which pertain to their respective category.

2. Present Commercial Operators and Non-Commercial Lessees conducting
operations on the Airport, prior to the effective date of these Standards, may be
allowed to continue operations without fully complying with the portions of these
Standards relating to the number of categories and the physical requirements of
land and buildings so long as such operations are in the public interest, and does
not conflict with any FAA or Maine DOT requirement, or if the Board determines
that it would be an extreme hardship, financial or otherwise for such an Operator
to fully comply with said portions of these Standards. It is the responsibility of the
Operator to determine there is extreme hardship, financial or otherwise, and
provide documentation of this to the Airport with a request for exemption from
applicable elements of the Standards.

3. All Commercial Operators and Non-Commercial Lessees will be subject to
applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, and other regulatory
measures.

4. All Commercial Operator’s Sub Lessees and Non-Commercial Sub Lessees, also
known as Subtenants, are subject to the provisions of these standards as well as
all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, and other
regulatory measures. Any reference to “Operator” or “Lessee” is understood to
include any and all Sub-Lessees.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 

http://www.flytomaine.com/


Page 3 of 17 

5. No person(s), firm or legal entity shall act as a Commercial Operator or Non-
Commercial Lessee on the Airport, until such time as that person(s), firm or legal
entity has (i) applied for and received permission to so act, and (ii) has entered
into and executed a lease/contract/operating rights Agreement with the Board.

6. No lease/contract/operating rights Agreement executed under these Standards
shall be transferable without first obtaining the prior written approval of the
Airport Director. Approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

7. It is the Board’s intention not to approve any application, or enter into any
lease/contract/operating rights Agreement, which offers more favorable terms
and conditions for the same or similar rights to any one Commercial Operator or
Non-Commercial Lessee more than another.

8. All leases/contracts/operating rights Agreements for commercial operations shall
contain, inter alia, a covenant reciting the Commercial Operator’s obligation to
pay, as applicable, (i) an amount for the basic annual rental of agreed premises
and, as applicable based on the type of operation being conducted and if
specified in a lease and operating rights agreement, and/ or (ii) an amount equal
to certain percentage of its gross annual income or revenue for operating rights
granted. Such stipulations and covenants will be recited in the applicable
lease/contract/operating rights Agreement.

9. The Board shall review these Standards periodically and as-needed and shall
recommend such revisions or amendments as shall be deemed necessary under
the use circumstances surrounding the Airport to properly protect the safety, and
interest of the public.

10. All leases and/ or operating rights agreements entered into by the Board shall be
subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future agreement between the
Commercial Operator or Non-Commercial Lessee and the United States, relative
to the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been
or may be required as a condition precedent to the expenditure of federal funds
for the development of the Airport.

11. It is specifically understood and agreed that nothing contained herein shall be
construed as granting or authorizing the granting of an exclusive right within the
meaning of 49 U.S. Code § 40103(e) and § 47107(a)(4).

c. Application

The implementation and application of these Standards shall be accomplished by the Airport,
acting through its duly appointed Board of Directors and/or its duly appointed Airport Director.

These Standards shall be published. The Standards shall be appended to all existing and
future leases/contracts and operating rights agreements and shall be considered a part of all
leases/contracts and/or operating rights agreements which the Board has now or does in the
future enter into.

d. Related Materials
- Order 5190.6B, Airport Compliance Manual.
- Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5190-7, Minimum Standards for Commercial Aeronautical 

Activities. 
- AC 150/5190-6 – Exclusive Rights at Federally Obligated Airports. 

3. Minimum Standards for Specific Activities
A Fixed Base Operator (FBO) is defined as an entity engaging in an activity which involves, makes
possible, or is required for the operation of aircraft, or which contributes to, or is required for the
safety of such aircraft operations. The purpose of such activity may be to secure earnings, income,
compensation or profit, whether or not such objective(s) are accomplished. Authorized activities by
a Commercial Operator shall be strictly limited to any one or a combination of the following
aeronautical services performed in full compliance with the specific standards for that activity as set
forth herein:

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 4 of 17 

I. Line services (aircraft fuels and oil dispensing)
II. Flight training
III. Aircraft charter and air taxi
IV. Aircraft sales (new and/or used)
V. Aircraft rentals
VI. Airframe and power plant repair facilities
VII. Aircraft painting and/ or repair or initial outfitting of interiors
VIII. Specialized aircraft repair service - radios, propellers, instruments, and accessories.
IX. Aircraft parking and storage
X. Specialized Aeronautical Service Operator (SASO)
XI. Flying clubs
XII. Independent operators
XIII. Any other activities not specifically provided for in these Minimum Standards

An entity wishing to engage in activities which involve multiple FBO categories must meet the 
minimum requirements for all categories in question.  

I. Line services (aircraft fuels and oil dispensing)
a. Statement of Concept

An aircraft fuel and oil service FBO provides aviation fuels, lubricants and other services
supporting both based and itinerant aircraft operations.

b. Required Leasehold/ Building and/or Hangar size
The Operator shall lease from the Airport an area of not less than 1,000 square feet of ground
space for the purpose of installing two above-ground fuel tanks, one for general aviation fuel
and the other for Jet A, of not less than 10,000 gallons each or shall lease from the Airport the
square footage upon which the existing fuel tank(s) are installed.

The Operator shall acquire or construct on a separate leasehold a building to provide at least
725 square feet of floor space for office space, a customer/ pilot lounge, and rest rooms, which
shall be properly heated, cooled, and lighted. The Operator shall also provide telephone
facilities and wireless high-speed internet for customer use.

The Airport may lease space in the Terminal Building to satisfy this requirement and applicable
terms will be included in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

c. Personnel Requirements

The Operator shall employ and train sufficient employees to meet the standards and
procedures set forth in this category. The employees of the operator shall be trained to use
fire extinguishers and spill response equipment, such as absorbents and containment devices
established in the Airport’s Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and Spill
Prevention Control and Countermeasure Plan (SPCCP).

d. Hours of Operation Requirements

The Operator shall have the premises open and services available year round with hours as
negotiated and determined in the lease agreement, but in any case open during daylight
hours, seven (7) days a week for aircraft fueling and dispensing. During hours of darkness,
the Operator shall provide an “on-call” service and respond within one (1) hour of the request.
The Operator shall arrange for an employee to be in attendance in the office at all times during
the required operating hours.

e. Equipment requirements
i. Aircraft Fuel and Oil Dispensing Operations

The Operator shall furnish and maintain an adequate supply of recognized AVGAS, Jet-
A fuel, oils and lubricants to meet public demand. Specific grade and quantities shall
be negotiated as part of the lease agreement.
In conducting refueling operations, every Operator shall install and use adequate
grounding and/ or bonding locations in accordance with current National Fire Protection
Association (NFPA) standards to eliminate the hazards of static electricity and shall
provide fire extinguishers or other equipment, approved by the NFPA, of such types

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 5 of 17 

and in such numbers as are commensurate with the hazards involved in refueling and 
serving aircraft. 
The Operator shall handle and dispose of, away from the Airport, all used or unused 
oil, solvents, and other hazardous/ non-hazardous materials and waste in accordance 
with Federal, State and local requirements. 

ii. Aircraft Fueling Systems
The Operator shall provide metered, filter-equipped dispensers, fixed or mobile, for
dispensing required grades of fuel. All dispensers must be inspected as required by
NFPA standards and the inspection shall be documented and retained. Separate
dispensing pumps and meters are required for each grade of fuel and such facilities
are to be in accordance with applicable NFPA standards.
A self-serve, credit card capable fueling system available 24/7 is required for general
aviation fuel such as AVGAS.
A method of mobile fueling such as a fuel truck or trailer shall be required for Jet A and
available during operating hours and on-call as negotiated in the agreement.

iii. Aircraft General Services
The Operator shall provide line service that does not require a certified mechanical
rating and cabin services, to general aviation aircraft as can be performed efficiently
on the ramp or apron parking area. The Operator shall procure and maintain tools,
jacks, and such equipment and trained personnel as necessary to provide for aircraft
towing for moving and parking aircraft and assisting in the removal of disabled aircraft,
inflating aircraft tires, changing engine oil, washing aircraft in designated areas,
performing lavatory service on jet aircraft, and for recharging and energizing aircraft
batteries and starters. All equipment shall be maintained and operated in accordance
with Federal, State and local industrial codes.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land lease and/ or applicable building lease, the Operator shall pay a fuel
flowage fee per gallon of fuel delivered as set forth in the negotiated operating agreement. A
percentage of gross revenue or fixed fee shall apply to other revenue producing sales and
services.

g. Insurance Requirements
The Operator shall obtain and maintain at all times insurance policies of the types and in the
amounts required by the Board as specified in Appendix B of these standards and more
particularly in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

II. Flight training
a. Statement of Concept

A flight training FBO engages in instructing pilots in dual and solo flight training, in fixed and/
or rotary wing aircraft, and provides such related ground school instruction as is necessary
and preparatory to taking the written examination and flight check ride for the category or
categories of pilot licenses and ratings involved.

b. Required Leasehold/ Building and/or Hangar size
The Operator shall acquire or construct on a separate leasehold a building and/ or tie down
space to provide enough square footage for the reasonable storage of two (2) aircraft and at
least an additional 725 square feet for office space, a classroom/ briefing room, and rest room,
which shall be properly heated, cooled, and lighted. The Operator shall also provide telephone
facilities, a computer with high speed internet access for students and pilots, and
complimentary wireless high-speed internet access for students. The leasehold must have
airside and landside access for customers.
The Airport may lease space in the Terminal Building to satisfy the office space requirement
and applicable terms will be included in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

Alternately, the Operator may elect to enter into a written agreement with an existing FBO
that meets the requirements of this FBO category. Such an agreement between an existing
FBO and new Category II. FBO operator shall be subject to the written approval of the Airport
Director and a copy of the final written agreement shall be provided to the Airport Director.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 6 of 17 

c. Personnel Requirements

The Operator shall have in his/ her employ, and on duty during the appropriate business hours,
trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet the minimum standards set forth
in this category of services in an efficient manner, but never less than two (2) persons, each
possessing a current, effective FAA commercial pilot license with an appropriate instructor
rating for the types of training offered as well as a current medical certificate.

d. Hours of Operation Requirements

The Operator shall have the premises open and services available year round with operating
hours as negotiated and required in the lease agreement. The Operator shall arrange for an
employee to be in attendance in the office at all times during the required operating hours.

e. Equipment requirements
The Operator shall have available for in-flight training use, either owned or under written lease
to the Operator, not less than two (2) properly certified, airworthy aircraft equipped for pilots
with student and private FAA certificates. Offering instrument and commercial ratings is
desired, but not required. If the aircraft required under this section are no longer airworthy,
the FBO must notify the Airport Director of the aircraft’s status in a timely manner in writing
along with a timeline for returning the aircraft to an airworthy condition or acquiring a
replacement airworthy aircraft.
For a flight training FBO offering instrument ratings, the Operator shall have available for use
an FAA approved flight training device (FTD).
The Operator must offer for sale current aeronautical publications as appropriate and
necessary for student, private, instrument and commercial pilots.
The Operator shall provide adequate mock-ups, pictures, slides, programs or other visual aids
necessary to provide proper ground school instruction.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease and/ or tie down fee, a percentage of gross revenue or
fixed fee shall apply to revenue producing sales and services as set forth in the negotiated
operating agreement.

g. Insurance Requirements
In addition to the standard insurance requirements specified in these Standards, for flight
training, the Operator is required to notify the customer as to whether or not any of the
operator’s insurance coverage applies to or protects the customer while using the operator’s
aircraft.

III. Aircraft charter and air taxi
a. Statement of Concept

An unscheduled, or scheduled air charter or air taxi FBO engages in the business of providing
air transportation (persons or property) to the general public for hire, on an unscheduled or
scheduled basis under 14 CFR Part 135, Operating Requirements: Commuter and On Demand 
Operations and Rules Governing Persons on Board Such Aircraft.

b. Required Leasehold/ Building and/or Hangar size
The Operator shall lease from the Airport an area adequate to store its aircraft used for its
135 operation. The leasehold must have airside and landside access for customers.
The Operator would additionally lease or possess 1) separate from or included with the aircraft
hangar space, direct landside and airside access with at least an additional 725 square feet
of floor space which shall be properly heated, cooled, and lighted for office space, a customer/
passenger lounge with telephone facilities and complimentary wireless high speed internet
for customer use, and rest rooms; or, 2) The Airport may lease space in the Terminal Building
to satisfy the office space requirement and applicable terms will be included in the Lease and
Operating Rights Agreement; or 3) a written agreement with an existing FBO or the Airport
that meets the requirements of item 1. Such an agreement between an existing FBO and
Category III. FBO operator shall be subject to the written approval of the Airport Director and
Board and a copy of the final written agreement shall be provided to the Airport Director.

c. Personnel Requirements

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 7 of 17 

The Operator must be certified by the FAA under F.A.R. Part 135 and provide a copy of the 
certificate to the Airport Director within 10 days upon request. The Operator shall have in his/ 
her employ and on duty during the appropriate business hours trained personnel in such 
numbers as are required to meet the standards set forth in this category in an efficient manner 
but never less than one (1) pilot appropriately rated by the FAA to provide the services offered 
by the Operator. 

d. Hours of Operation Requirements
The Operator shall have the premises open and services available as negotiated and required
in the lease agreement. The Operator may provide on-call service during hours other than the
aforementioned.

e. Equipment requirements

The Operator shall have available for use, either owned or under written lease to the Operator,
airworthy aircraft that shall be suitably equipped for such operations as specified in the lease
and operating rights agreement for the purpose or aircraft charter or air taxi operations.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease, a percentage of gross revenue or fixed fee shall apply
to revenue producing sales and services as set forth in the negotiated operating agreement.

g. Insurance Requirements
The Operator shall obtain and maintain at all times insurance policies of the types and in the
amounts required by the Board as specified in Appendix B of these standards and more
particularly in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

IV. Aircraft sales (new and/or used)
a. Statement of Concept

An aircraft sales FBO engages in the sale of new or used aircraft through franchises, licensed
dealerships or distributorships (either on a retail or wholesale basis) or otherwise, and provide
such repairs, services, and parts as necessary to meet any guarantee or warranty on new or
used aircraft sold by the FBO.

b. Required Leasehold/ Building and/or Hangar Size
The Operator shall lease from the Airport an area adequate to store its aircraft. The leasehold
must have airside and landside access for customers.
The Operator would additionally lease or possess 1) separate from or included with the aircraft
hangar space, direct landside and airside access with at least an additional 725 square feet
of floor space which shall be properly heated, cooled, and lighted for office space, a customer/
passenger lounge with telephone facilities and complimentary wireless high speed internet
for customer use, and rest rooms; or, 2) The Airport may lease space in the Terminal Building
to satisfy the office space requirement and applicable terms will be included in the Lease and
Operating Rights Agreement; or 3) a written agreement with an existing FBO or the Airport
that meets the requirements of item 1. Such an agreement between an existing FBO and
Category III. FBO operator shall be subject to the written approval of the Airport Director and
Board and a copy of the final written agreement shall be provided to the Airport Director.

c. Personnel Requirements
The Operator shall have in his/her employ, and on duty during the appropriate business hours,
trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet the minimum standards set forth
in an efficient manner, but never less than one (1) person having a current, private pilot
certificate and minimum hour requirement as specified by FAA for type and category of aircraft
to be demonstrated for sale.
An operator engaging in the sale of used aircraft must conform to the provisions of FAA
regulations, part 47, Subpart C, and must possess a valid "Dealers Aircraft Registration
Certificate", FAA Form 8050. A copy of each valid certificate must be sent to the Airport within
10 calendar days upon request.

d. Hours of Operation Requirements
The Operator shall have the premises open and services available year round with operating
hours as negotiated and required in the operating agreement. The Operator shall arrange for
an employee to be in attendance in the office at all times during the required operating hours.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 8 of 17 

e. Equipment requirements

The Operator shall provide to customers current, up-to-date specifications and price lists for
types and models of aircraft sold.
The Operator shall provide necessary and satisfactory arrangements for repair and servicing
of aircraft, but only for the duration of any sales guarantee or warranty period.  Servicing
facilities may be provided through written agreement with an authorized FBO at the Airport.
A copy of this agreement shall be provided to the Airport Director.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease, a percentage of gross revenue or fixed fee shall apply
to revenue producing sales and services as set forth in the negotiated lease agreement.

g. Insurance Requirements
The Operator shall obtain and maintain at all times insurance policies of the types and in the
amounts required by the Board as specified in Appendix B of these standards and more
particularly in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

V. Aircraft rentals
a. Statement of Concept

An aircraft rental FBO engages in the rental of aircraft for operation by student pilots or other
pilots not employed by the Operator.

b. Required Leasehold / Building and/or Hangar size

The Operator shall acquire or construct on a separate leasehold a building and/ or tie down
space to provide enough square footage for the reasonable storage of at least one (1) aircraft
to be offered for rental and at least an additional 725square feet for office space, a classroom/
briefing room, and rest room, which shall be properly heated, cooled, and lighted. The
Operator shall also provide telephone facilities, a computer with high speed internet access
for students and pilots, and complimentary wireless high-speed internet access for students.
The leasehold must have airside and landside access for customers.
The Airport may lease space in the Terminal Building to satisfy the office space requirement
and applicable terms will be included in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

Alternately, the Operator may elect to enter into a written agreement with an existing FBO
that meets the requirements of this FBO category. Such an agreement between an existing
FBO and new Category II. FBO operator shall be subject to the written approval of the Airport
Director and a copy of the final written agreement shall be provided to the Airport Director.

c. Personnel Requirements

The Operator shall have in his/ her employ, and on duty during the appropriate business hours,
trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet the minimum standards set forth
in this category of services in an efficient manner, but never less than one (1) person
possessing a current, effective FAA commercial pilot license with an appropriate instructor
rating for the rental aircraft as well as a current medical certificate.

d. Hours of Operation Requirements
The Operator shall have the premises open and services available year round with hours as
negotiated and required in the operating agreement. The Operator shall arrange for an
employee to be in attendance in the office at all times during the required operating hours.

e. Equipment requirements

The Operator shall have available for rental, either owned or under written lease to the
Operator, not less than one (1) properly certified and currently airworthy aircraft suitably
equipped for pilots with student, private, or commercial FAA certificates. An aircraft airworthy
and outfitted for instrument flight is desired, but not required. The Operator shall have on
hand, at all times, proper checklists and operating manuals for each and every aircraft
available for rental.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease, a percentage of gross revenue or fixed fee shall apply
to revenue producing sales and services as set forth in the negotiated operating agreement.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 9 of 17 

g. Insurance Requirements
In addition to the standard insurance requirements specified in these Standards, for rental
activities, the Operator is required to notify the customer as to whether or not any of the
operator’s insurance coverage applies to or protects the customer while using the operator’s
aircraft.

VI. Airframe and power plant repair facilities
a. Statement of Concept

An aircraft airframe and power plant repair and maintenance FBO engages in the maintenance
and repair of aircraft and/ or rotorcraft, power plants, propellers and or rotors, accessories,
and the sale of aircraft parts and accessories.

b. Required Leasehold/ Building and/or Hangar Size
The Operator shall acquire or construct a building to provide at least 2,750 square feet of floor
space for airframe and power plant repair service, including sufficient hangar space to provide
housing for any aircraft being serviced, all meeting with federal, state, and local industrial
code requirements and at least an additional 250 square feet of floor space for office space,
a customer/ pilot lounge, and rest rooms, which shall be properly heated, cooled, and lighted.
The Operator shall also provide telephone facilities and complimentary wireless high speed
internet for customer use.
The Airport may lease space in its Building(s) to satisfy the office/ customer/ bathroom space
requirements and applicable terms will be included in the Lease and Operating Rights
Agreement.

c. Personnel Requirements
The Operator shall have in his/ her employ, and on duty during the appropriate business hours,
trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet the minimum standards set forth
in this category of services in an efficient manner, but never less than one (1) person currently
certified by the FAA as an airworthiness inspector with ratings appropriate to the work being
performed. Maintenance support must be available at other times with proper coordination.

d. Hours of Operation Requirements
The Operator shall have the premises open and services available year round with operating
hours as negotiated and required in the operating agreement, but at a minimum Monday
through Friday during regular business hours.

e. Equipment requirements
The Operator shall provide adequate shop space to house all equipment, and shall keep on
hand at all times a stock of batteries, filters, plugs, and miscellaneous hardware and electrical
components necessary for the types of repairs and maintenance performed as well as
adequate equipment and machine tools, jacks, lifts and testing equipment to perform annual
inspections as required for FAA certification on single engine and light multi-engine, general
aviation aircraft. The Operator shall also have on hand in in good working order the equipment
and trained personnel required for aircraft towing and commonplace aircraft emergency
services such as flat tires and dead batteries.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease, a percentage of gross revenue or fixed fee shall apply
to revenue producing sales and services as set forth in the negotiated operating agreement.

g. Insurance Requirements
The Operator shall obtain and maintain at all times insurance policies of the types and in the
amounts required by the Board as specified in Appendix B of these standards and more
particularly in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

VII. Aircraft painting and/ or repair or initial outfitting of interiors
a. Statement of Concept

An aircraft painting and/ or repair or initial outfitting of interiors FBO engages in the business
of providing a shop for the painting of aircraft and/ or repair, rehabilitation, and renovation of
aircraft interiors.

b. Required Leasehold/ Building and/or Hangar size

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 10 of 17 

The Operator shall acquire or construct a building to provide at least 8,000 square feet of floor 
space for specialized aircraft repair service, including sufficient hangar space to provide 
housing for any aircraft being serviced, all meeting with federal, state, and local industrial 
code requirements and at least an additional 820 square feet of floor space for office space, 
a customer/ pilot lounge, and rest rooms, which shall be properly heated, cooled, and lighted. 
The Operator shall also provide telephone facilities and complimentary wireless high speed 
internet for customer use. 

c. Personnel Requirements
The Operator shall have the appropriate personnel available as negotiated and required in the
operating agreement. The Operator shall arrange for an employee to be in attendance in the
office at all times during the required operating hours.

d. Hours of Operation Requirements
The Operator shall have the premises open and services available year round with hours as
negotiated and required in the operating agreement.

e. Equipment requirements
The Operator shall provide adequate shop space to house all equipment, and shall keep on
hand at all times adequate equipment and tools to perform aircraft painting and/ or repair or
initial outfitting of interiors.
The Operator shall outfit the building for painting services with such setup, separation, and
ventilation in accordance with Federal, State and local codes and requirements.
The Operator shall handle and dispose of, way from the Airport, all used or unused oil, paints,
solvents, and other hazardous/ non-hazardous materials and waste in accordance with
Federal, State and local requirements.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease, a percentage of gross revenue or fixed fee shall apply
to revenue producing sales and services as set forth in the negotiated operting agreement.

g. Insurance Requirements
The Operator shall obtain and maintain at all times insurance policies of the types and in the
amounts required by the Board as specified in Appendix B of these standards and more
particularly in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

VIII. Specialized aircraft repair service - radios, propellers, instruments, and accessories.
a. Statement of Concept

An FAA authorized repair station for avionics sales and service FBO engages in the business
of providing a shop for the repair of aircraft radios, instruments, and accessories for general
aviation aircraft. This category shall include the sale of new or used aircraft radios,
instruments, and accessories.

b. Required Leasehold/ Building and/or Hangar size
The Operator shall acquire or construct a building to provide at least 2,750 square feet of floor
space for airframe and power plant repair service, including sufficient hangar space to provide
housing for any aircraft being serviced, all meeting with federal, state, and local industrial
code requirements and at least an additional 250 square feet of floor space for office space,
a customer/ pilot lounge, and rest rooms, which shall be properly heated, cooled, and lighted.
The Operator shall also provide telephone facilities and complimentary wireless high speed
internet for customer use.
The Airport may lease space in its Building(s) to satisfy the office/ customer/ bathroom space
requirements and applicable terms will be included in the Lease and Operating Rights
Agreement.

c. Personnel Requirements

An Operator engaged in service, repair or maintenance of aircraft shall be in possession of an
airframe and power plant Certified Repair Station License as granted by the Federal Aviation
Administration and provide a copy to the Airport within 10 days upon request. The Operator
shall arrange for an employee to be in attendance in the office at all times during the required
operating hours.

d. Hours of Operation Requirements

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 11 of 17 

The Operator shall have the premises open and services available as negotiated and required 
in the operating agreement. 

e. Equipment requirements
The Operator shall provide adequate shop space to house all equipment, and shall keep on
hand at all times adequate equipment and machine tools, jacks, lifts and testing equipment
to perform specialized aircraft repair services.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease, a percentage of gross revenue or fixed fee shall apply
to revenue producing sales and services as set forth in the negotiated operating agreement.

g. Insurance Requirements
The Operator shall obtain and maintain at all times insurance policies of the types and in the
amounts required by the Board as specified in Appendix B of these standards and more
particularly in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

IX. Aircraft parking and storage
a. Statement of Concept

An aircraft parking and storage FBO engages in the transient and/or based parking or storage
of aircraft at the Airport.

b. Required Leasehold/ Building and/or Hangar size
The Operator shall lease from the Airport an area of not less than 8,700 square feet (60’ x
145’) of ground space for aircraft tie-downs and storage, parking and other uses in accordance
with the services to be offered, and on which shall be erected a minimum of four (4) nested
“T” hangars, or a single, large storage hangar with not less than 8,000 square feet of floor
space or its equivalent (80’ x 100’). The operator shall provide a paved taxilane to
accommodate aircraft movement from the Operator’s facilities to the existing Airport taxiway
system, as appropriate. An Operator providing more than 10 hangar spaces shall provide
restroom facilities for tenants.
The Airport may lease space in its Building(s) to satisfy the bathroom requirement and
applicable terms will be included in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

Ramp space is for use by the general public only unless specifically leased to the Operator.
The Operator shall not be permitted to use any portion of public ramp space for its business.

c. Personnel Requirements
The Operator shall have the appropriate personnel available as negotiated and required in the
operating agreement.

d. Hours of Operation Requirements
The Operator shall maintain hangars and/ or tie-down spots available for the customer’s
aircraft storage and removal seven (7) days a week, twenty-four (24) hours per day.

e. Equipment requirements

Not applicable.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease, a percentage of gross revenue or fixed fee shall apply
to revenue producing sales and services as set forth in the negotiated operating agreement.

g. Insurance Requirements
The Operator shall obtain and maintain at all times insurance policies of the types and in the
amounts required by the Board as specified in Appendix B of these standards and more
particularly in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

X. Specialized Aeronautical Service Operator (SASO)
a. Statement of Concept

A SASO provides a limited commercial aviation related service not currently available to the
public at the time of application from an existing approved Fixed Base Operator.  Examples
of these specialized services may include: flight training, aircraft airframe and power plant
repair/maintenance, aircraft charter, air taxi, air ambulance, aircraft sales, avionics,
instrument or propeller services, crop dusting, banner tow, aerial photography, or any other

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 12 of 17 

single service aviation activity determined by the Board to be in the best interest of the airport 
and the flying public.  

b. Required Leasehold Size
The Operator shall have a leasehold sized to suitably accommodate its purpose. The leasehold
size will be negotiated and required in the lease and operating rights agreement. Sub-lease
in writing from an existing FBO is allowable in order to fulfill leasehold size requirements. A
copy of each executed sublease shall be provided to the Airport Director within 14 calendar
days of its execution.

c. Required Building and/or Hangar size
The Operator shall have an appropriately sized building and/ or hangar containing elements
to provide an appropriate level of service. The building and/ or hangar elements required will
be negotiated and included in the lease agreement. Sub-lease from an existing FBO is
allowable in order to fulfill building and/ or hangar element requirements.

d. Personnel Requirements
The Operator shall have the appropriate personnel available as negotiated and required in the
lease agreement.

e. Hours of Operation Requirements
The Operator shall have the premises open and services available as negotiated and required
in the lease agreement.

f. Equipment requirements
The Operator shall have available for use, either owned or under written lease to the Operator,
airworthy aircraft that shall be suitably equipped for such operations as specified in the lease
and operating rights agreement.

g. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease, a percentage of gross revenue or fixed fee shall apply
to revenue producing sales and services as set forth in the negotiated operating agreement.

h. Insurance Requirements
In addition to the standard insurance requirements specified in these Standards, for flight
training, the Operator is required to notify the customer as to whether or not any of the
operator’s insurance coverage applies to or protects the customer while using the operator’s
aircraft.

XI. Flying Clubs
a. Statement of Concept

A flying club is a non-profit entity formed as an organization, corporation, association or
partnership with the purpose of providing its members with jointly owned and operated
aircraft for non-commercial use.

b. Required Leasehold Size
The club may lease tie down space for outdoor storage in compliance with the Airport’s Aircraft
Parking Policy, as may be amended from time to time. Any aircraft utilized by the club and
stored on the airport premises shall be either contained in a hangar or on a tie down in a
location specified for aircraft parking on the Airport Layout Plan and/ or approved by the
Airport Director in writing.

c. Required Building and/or Hangar size
The club may lease hangar space at the Airport for the purpose of aircraft storage. Such a
lease agreement will be in line with private hangar leases at the Airport.

d. Personnel Requirements
Each club must be a certified non-profit in the State of Maine. The club may not derive greater
revenue from the use of its aircraft than the amount necessary for the actual use of operation,
maintenance and replacement of the aircraft. The club will file and keep current with the
Airport a complete list of the club's membership and, if applicable, investment share held by
each member.

e. Hours of Operation Requirements
Not applicable; flying clubs are not authorized to provide commercial services to the public.

f. Equipment requirements

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 13 of 17 

The club will file annually and keep current with the Airport a complete list of the club's 
aircraft.  
The club's aircraft will not be used by any person other than bona fide members for rental and 
by no one for hire, charter or air taxi. Student instruction can be given through an existing 
FBO or by a FAA Certified Flight Instructor who is a bona fide member of the club, but only at 
no cost to other bona fide members of the club. 

g. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease or tie down fee, a percentage of gross revenue shall not
apply because the club will not produce revenue above and beyond self-sustaining revenue.
Members of the club and the club itself are not exempt from any/ all fees and charges for
airport services unless negotiated, approved, put in writing with the Airport.

h. Insurance Requirements
The Operator shall obtain and maintain at all times insurance policies of the types and in the
amounts required by the Board as specified in Appendix B of these standards and more
particularly in the Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

XII. Independent Operators
a. Statement of Concept

Individual operators may perform a single-service aviation support activity on the airport
only if the service is not available from an existing Fixed Base Operator or permitted SASO
and only with permission of the Board in the form of an operating rights agreement. An
example of such activity may be, but is not limited to, certified FAA check airmen performing
check rides or specialized mechanic services such as those for a jet not offered by an existing
on-airport FBO. For all operations currently existing and in operation at the Airport,
independent operators must obtain a sub-lease for operating rights from the established
commercial operator or otherwise fulfill the requirements of that category or categories of
operation, as applicable. Such subleases must obtain prior written approval from the Airport
Director. A copy of each executed sublease shall be provided to the Airport Director within 14
calendar days of its execution.

b. Required Leasehold/ Building and/or Hangar size
The Operator shall lease from the Airport an area of not less than one (1) annual aircraft tie-
down, and/ or lease or sublease on the Airport an aircraft storage hangar capable of storing
at least one (1) aircraft. This requirement may be waived with prior approval from the Airport
Director under certain circumstances where deemed appropriate.
Ramp space not specifically leased to the Operator is for use by the general public only.  The
Operator shall not be permitted to use any portion of public ramp space for its business.

c. Personnel Requirements
The Operator shall have the appropriate personnel available as negotiated and required in the
operating rights agreement.

d. Hours of Operation Requirements
The Operator shall have the appropriate personnel and services available during certain hours
as negotiated and required in the operating rights agreement.

e. Equipment requirements

The Operator shall have the appropriate Equipment available as negotiated and required in
the operating rights agreement.

f. Rates and Fees
In addition to the land/ building lease and/ or tie down fee, a monthly, quarterly, or annual
fee, as appropriate, and/ or percentage of gross revenues obtained from the operation will be
negotiated prior to allowing this type of operation. A fee may not be required, dependent upon
the type of operation. This determination will be made by the Airport Director and uniformly
applied without unjust discrimination pursuant to FAA guidance regarding exclusive rights.

g. Insurance Requirements
The Operator shall obtain and maintain at all times insurance policies of the types and in the
amounts required by the Board as specified in Appendix B of these standards and more
particularly in the operating rights agreement.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 14 of 17 

XIII. Any other activities not specifically provided for in these Minimum Standards, including non-
aeronautical activities, will be subject to negotiation.

4. Policy for Through-The-Fence Operations

Through-the-fence operations occur when an entity owning or operating on property adjoining the
airport is provided direct access for aircraft from the adjoining property to the airport facilities.
Unauthorized access to the Airport from adjacent properties is expressly prohibited. The Airport is
under no obligation to allow through-the-fence operations. If, however, the Airport decides to allow a
through-the-fence operation, a signed airport access agreement is required. This agreement shall
give the Airport the legal right to require the party granted access to conform to all applicable grant
assurances and specifies, at a minimum:

a. Specific rights of access
b. Specific Operating Rights as contained in Section 3, if applicable
c. Payment provisions for use of airport
d. Incorporation of Airport policy documents including but not limited to these Standards
e. Default and termination procedures
f. Insurance and Indemnity provisions
g. The airport sponsor is under no obligation to accept sale or assignment of the agreement
h. Federal grant assurances supersede the access agreement in all cases
i. Expiration date

Such an agreement shall contain terms that do not provide unfair advantage to the Through the 
Fence Operator over similarly situated on-airport Commercial Operators or Non-Commercial Lessees, 
as applicable. Through the Fence operations must not adversely affect the safety, utility, or efficiency 
of the Airport. 

5. Basic Terms and Conditions for Leases/ Contracts/ Operating Rights Agreements
The following terms and conditions shall be basic to all leases/contracts/operating rights
agreements now in existence or to be entered into in the future.

a. General Terms

1. Any lease/operating rights Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions of any
existing or future agreement between the Airport and the United States, relative to the
operation or maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be
required as a condition precedent to the expenditure of Federal funds for the
development of the Airport.

2. In addition to the requirements of the FAA and the Maine DOT, the Board may establish
and implement such rules and regulations as may be required for the (a) safe and orderly
operation of the Airport, (b) the safe and orderly operation of aircraft in the Airport traffic
area and airspace surrounding the Airport, and (c) the safe and orderly operation of
aircraft and vehicles on the ground.

3. The Operator, his/her agents and employees will not discriminate against any person or
class of persons by reason of race, color, sexual orientation, creed or national origin in
providing any services or in the use of any of its facilities provided for the public, in any
manner prohibited by Appendix D to 14 CFR Part 152 - Assurances.  The Operator further
agrees to comply with such enforcement procedures as the United States might demand
that the Board take in order to comply with these Assurances.

4. AC 150/5190-5 – Exclusive Rights and Minimum Standards for Commercial Aeronautical 
Activities, states “an aircraft owner, who is entitled to use the landing area of an airport,
may tie down, adjust, repair, refuel, clean, and otherwise service his/her own aircraft,
provided the service is performed by the aircraft Board or his/her employees with
resources supplied by the aircraft Board.”  Level of maintenance and repairs performed
shall comply with 14 CFR Part 43 – Maintenance, Preventive Maintenance, Rebuilding, 
and Alteration.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 15 of 17 

5. The Airport Director shall be kept informed, promptly in writing, of the type, registration,
aircraft Board’s name, address, email address, and phone number for all aircraft stored
in or on Premises for more than thirty (30) calendar days per year.

6. All non-airworthy aircraft not in an enclosed structure shall be removed from the Airport
on thirty (30) days written notice from the Board to the Aircraft Owner at the Owner’s
expense unless a waiver is requested and granted for insurance purposes.

7. In the event of any conflict between the terms of these Minimum Standards and
Procedures, and the provisions of any lease of a portion of the Airport property, the more
stringent requirement in either document shall be controlling.

b. Terms for Facilities
1. Unless otherwise leased by the Board, all Operators shall provide for and adhere to the

following, as applicable.
a. Design plans and specifications are subject to review by the Airport Director for

compliance with Federal, State of Maine, and Municipal standards, ordinances,
regulations and laws.  No construction of any kind shall be done at the Airport
without the prior written approval of the Board, and no such approval shall be
granted unless such construction and design is consistent with the latest approved
Airport Layout Plan (ALP) for the development at the Airport.  Construction shall be
completed as expeditiously as practical.

b. Aircraft hangars, office space, storage facilities, restrooms, customer lounge, and
other facilities, as required by these Standards.

c. Adequate auto parking space as required by Code to accommodate all of Operator's
employees and customers.

d. A paved aircraft apron which meets appropriate FAA specifications within the leased
area; and a paved taxiway within and without the leased area to accommodate
aircraft movement from the Tenant’s facilities to the existing Airport taxiway
system.

2. Operator shall maintain all buildings and land on Airport property to the following
standards, or as directed by the Airport Director:

a. Open storage areas shall be screened from public view.
b. Exterior buildings, signs and other structures shall be maintained in accordance

with Airport standards and be in good condition.  Prior to the construction or

display of any exterior signing, written approval must be obtained from the Airport

Director.  All signs shall comply with the municipal sign code, as applicable.

c. Non-paved areas may be landscaped with lawns, mulch, shrubs, etc., as approved
prior to installation by the Airport Director. Such approval will not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned, or delayed provided it does not interfere with the safety,
utility, or efficiency of the Airport.

d. Lawns shall be cut to present a neat appearance.
e. Trash is not allowed on Airport property.  Place trash and cigarette cans where

needed.
f. Absolutely no activities shall take place on airport property to attract wildlife of any

kind, including but not limited to bird or animal feeding, installation of bird baths,
or installation of bird or animal feeders.

g. Pavements shall be joint-sealed and painted in accordance with FAA and MaineDOT
standards.

h. The Operator/ Lessee is responsible for snow and ice control as specified in each
individual lease or operating rights agreement. The Airport Director shall approve
snow and ice control equipment and trained operators permitted on Airport
property. Agreements may specify snow removal procedures for each leasehold.

i. All used or unused oil, solvents, and other hazardous/non-hazardous materials and
waste shall be handled and disposed of, away from the Airport, in accordance with
Federal, State of Maine and municipal requirements.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 16 of 17 

3. All Operators and Lessees shall comply with the Airport’s Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP).

4. Board reserves the right to take any action it considers necessary to protect the 14 CFR
Part 77 – Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace, and FAA Order 8260.3B – United States
Standard for Terminal Instrument Procedures imaginary surfaces against obstructions,
together with the right to prevent Operator or Lessee from erecting, or permitting to be
erected, any building or other structure on the Airport which, in the opinion of the Airport
Director, would limit the usefulness of the Airport or constitute a hazard to aircraft.

5. Board reserves the right to, without obligation to the Operator/ Lessee/ Applicant, keep
the airport landing area, and publicly owned facilities in good repair.

6. Ramp space other than ramp space specifically leased to or defined under a
management agreement with the Lessee shall be for use by the general public only.  No
Lessee shall be permitted to use any portion of public ramp space for his/her use
exclusively or to use any of such ramp space as parking or tie-down area.

c. Terms for Operator Services

1. Operator shall furnish services on a fair, equal, and non-discriminatory basis to all users.
2. Operator shall charge fair, reasonable, and non-discriminatory prices for each unit of sale

or service, provided that the Operator may be allowed to make reasonable and non-
discriminatory discounts, rebates, or other similar types of price reductions to volume
purchasers.

3. The Operator shall provide, by means of an office, a telephone and a point of contact for
the public desiring to utilize Operator's services.

d. Policy for Insurance

1. Each Operator and Lessee shall protect the general public, other airport users, the
customers or clients and the Airport from any and all lawful damages, claims, or liability,
and they shall provide the types of insurance required in the applicable category(s) and
written in such amounts designated in this Standards and more particularly described in
Appendix B as amended from time to time but in no event less than the amounts required
in the Operator or Lessee’s negotiated lease agreement.

2. The Airport shall be an additional insured for ongoing and completed operations, on a
primary and noncontributory basis with a waiver of subrogation in any such policy, and
a certificate of insurance evidencing the same and the required coverage shall be
delivered to the Airport Director prior to the commencement of any new lease of Airport
property and annually for all existing agreements, as applicable.

3. The certificate of insurance shall provide that the insurance company, in writing, will
notify the Airport Director thirty (30) days in advance of any cancellation of such
insurance.

4. Insurance policies shall remain in full force and effect during the term of the
lease/contract/ operating agreement between the Operator/ Lessee and the Airport, and
any renewal policies shall be filed with the Airport Director not less than thirty (30) days
before the expiration date of such policies.

6. Application Procedures
a. Any person(s), firm or legal entity wishing to obtain the right to operate and/or establish

leasehold on the airport shall make written application to the Director in the manner and form
heretofore prescribed.

b. Application for permission to lease and/or use airport land or any facilities thereon shall be
accomplished in the manner and form as is dictated in these Standards and contained in
Appendix C.

c. It is the intent to examine each Applicant. Each Applicant shall provide satisfactory evidence
to the Airport Director of their technical and financial abilities including the ability to meet the
insurance requirements as stated herein.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 17 of 17 

d. Upon consideration of the application, the Airport Director shall determine whether or not the
Applicant meets the standards and qualifications as herein set out and whether or not such
application should be granted in whole or part, and if so, upon what terms and conditions. The
Airport Director will review all applications and provide a recommendation to the Board within
30 days from the receipt.

e. The following list contains examples of reasons why an application may be denied; the
following list is not exhaustive:

a. The Applicant does not meet the qualifications, standards and requirements
established by these Minimum Standards and Procedures.

b. The Applicant’s proposed operations or construction cannot be incorporated into the
Ultimate Airport Layout Plan and approved by FAA, the MDOT and the Board because:

i. It is a potential safety hazard to the Airport, or
ii. There is insufficient land or building space available, or
iii. It will result in a congestion of aircraft or buildings, or will unduly interfere with

the operation of any present FBO on the Airport, such as problems in connection
with aircraft traffic or service, or preventing free access and egress to the
existing FBO, or will result in depriving, without the proper economic study, an
existing FBO of portions of its leased area in which it is operating.

c. The granting of the application will require the expenditure of Airport funds, labor or
materials on the facilities described in or related to the application, or the operation
will result in a financial loss to the Airport.

d. Any party applying, or interested in the business, has supplied false information, or
has misrepresented any material fact in the application or in supporting documents, or
has failed to make full disclosure on the application.

e. Any party applying, or having an interest in the business, has a record of violating the
rules, or the rules and regulations of any other airport, civil air regulations, FAR, or any
other rules and regulations applicable to this or any other airport.

f. Any party applying, or having an interest in the business, has defaulted in the
performance of any lease or other agreement with the Airport or any lease or other
agreement at any other airport.

g. Any party applying, or having an interest in the business, is not sufficiently credit
worthy and responsible in the judgment of the Airport Director to provide and maintain
the business to which the application relates and to promptly pay amounts due under
the FBO lease.

h. The Applicant does not have the finances necessary to conduct the proposed operation
for a minimum period of six months.

i. The Applicant has been convicted of any crime, or violated any ordinance rule or
regulation, which adversely reflects on its ability to conduct the FBO operation applied
for.

f. The Board shall, after review and hearing, reserve the right to approve or disapprove the
subject application.

g. Each successful Applicant shall, within thirty (30) calendar days after having received written
approval of their application, enter into good faith negotiations to develop a written
lease/contract/operating rights Agreement with the Airport, in a form and manner prescribed
by the Board.

h. It is the intention of the Airport to enter into and execute a lease/contract/operating rights
Agreement with the approved Applicant within the thirty (30) calendar days after such
application is approved.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS 

 Aeronautical Activity: Any activity which involves, makes possible, or is required for the operation
of aircraft, or which contributes to or is required for the safety of such operations.

"Commercial" aeronautical activities shall mean any activity by an Operator or its Sub Lessee 
intended to result in a monetary gain.  
"Non-commercial" aeronautical activities shall mean any activity by a Lessee or its Sub Lessee 
which is conducted for their own benefit, without the intent of monetary gain.  

 Aeronautical Use: All activities that involve or are directly related to the operation of aircraft,
including activities that make the operation of aircraft possible and safe. Services located on the
airport that are directly and substantially related to the movement of passengers, baggage, mail,
and cargo are considered aeronautical uses.

 Aeronautical Users: Individuals or businesses providing services involving operation of aircraft or
flight support directly related to aircraft operation are considered to be aeronautical users.

 Agreements:
o Land Lease Agreement: Written agreement between the Airport and Lessee/ Tenant for

the termed use of a defined premises, typically for the construction of a privately (non-
Airport Owned) owned hangar or facility. May be sub-leased.

o Building or Facility Lease Agreement: Written agreement between the Airport and
Lessee/ Tenant/ Operator for the exclusive use of an Airport-owned facility or portion
of a facility. May be subleased with written approval from the Airport Director to fulfill
leasehold requirements for FBO type.

o Operating Rights Agreement: Written agreement between the Airport and an Operator
wishing to perform commercial activity of an FBO type included in these standards.
Contains details regarding all the requirements for the FBO type of operation, as
negotiated. May be a standalone document or may be combined with a land lease
and/or building lease to form a Land Lease and Operating Rights Agreement.

o Through the Fence Access and Operating Rights Agreement: Written agreement
between the Airport and an abutting landowner to specify access and operating terms
to enter onto and use Airport property. Requires FAA approval prior to local approval.

 Aircraft: Any machine supported for flight in the air by buoyancy or by the dynamic action of air on
its surfaces, especially powered airplanes, gliders, and helicopters.

 Airport: The Auburn – Lewiston Airport, (KLEW) Maine.
 Airport Director: Position hired by the Board of Directors to administer the day-to-day operations

or the Airport. May be referred to as Airport Manager. If the position is not filled, the Chair of the
Board of Directors shall function as Airport Director.

 Board: The Board of Directors of the Auburn-Lewiston Airport.
 Commercial Operator: Any Airport Tenant/ Lessee who fulfills the requirements of these standards

and the appropriate requirements of Articles I through XII or other specific requirements. Also
referred to as “Operator” or “FBO”.

 Commercial Operator Sub Lessee: Any person or entity which has entered into a sub-lease with a
Commercial Operator and who fulfills the appropriate requirements of the appropriate FBO category
or other specific requirements included in an operating rights agreement.

 Fixed-base Operator: A fixed-base operator (FBO) is a commercial operator providing aeronautical
services as described in Articles I through XII to the public. Also referred to as “Commercial
Operator” or “Operator”.

 Flying Club: A nonprofit or not-for-profit entity (e.g., corporation, association, or partnership)
organized for the express purpose of providing its members with aircraft for their personal use and
enjoyment only.

 Nonaeronautical Use: All uses of the airport other than those deemed as aeronautical uses are
considered nonaeronautical. Aviation-related uses that do not need to be located on an airport are
considered nonaeronautical uses. Nonaeronautical uses include public parking, rental cars, ground
transportation, as well as terminal concessions such as food and beverage and news and gift shops.
Federal law and policy on reasonableness of fees and other terms of airport access do not apply to
nonaeronautical uses. FAA Makes the final determination on what is considered nonaeronautical.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



Page 1 of 17 

 Non-commercial Lessee: Any person or entity that has entered into a lease for real property with
the Board at the Airport. Also referred to as “Lessee” or “Tenant”. May or may not also have an
operating rights agreement.

 Non-commercial Sub Lessee: Any person or entity which has entered into a sub-lease with a Non-
commercial Lessee.

 Self-fueling and Self-service: Self-fueling as stated in AC 150/5190-5 – Exclusive Rights and Minimum 
Standards for Commercial Aeronautical Activities means the fueling or servicing of an aircraft (e.g.
changing the oil, washing) by the Board of the aircraft with his or her own employees and using his
or her own equipment. Self-fueling and other self-services cannot be contracted out to another
party. Self-fueling implies using fuel obtained by the aircraft Board from the source of his/her
preference. As one of many self-service activities that can be conducted by the aircraft Board or
operator by his or her own employees using his or her own equipment, self-fueling, differs from
using a self-service fueling pump made available by the airport, an FBO, or an aeronautical service
provider. The use of a self-service fueling pump is a commercial activity and is not considered self-
fueling as defined herein. In addition to self-fueling, other self-service activities that can be
performed by the aircraft Board with his or her own employees includes activities such as
maintaining, repairing, cleaning, and otherwise providing service to an aircraft, provided the service
is performed by the aircraft Board or his/her employees with resources supplied by the aircraft
Board.

 Transient Pilot or Operator: Pilot or operator not based at LEW that may perform a commercial
operation such as flight instruction conducting cross-country flights or air taxi operations. Not
subject to these standards unless based at LEW but may be requested to provide proof of insurance.
Responsible for any applicable user, parking, landing and other applicable fees for the use of the
airport facility.

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 11/8/2023 



APPENDIX B MINIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENT       AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT  
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 

As required by these Standards, Operator or Lessee will provide the Airport Director with 

certificate(s) of insurance identifying the policies described below and the policies required to 

be obtained in the Operator or Lessee’s lease and/ or operating rights agreement. Minimum 

insurance requirement limits are shown in parentheses and may be further defined in the lease 

and/or operating rights agreement. The Board reserves the right to modify the minimum 

insurance requirements from time to time. The following insurance requirements apply to those 

operators who provide an aeronautical service on airport property: 

1. Comprehensive general public liability insurance (bodily injury/ property damage,

$1,000,000 each occurrence/ 1,000,000 aggregate) and including, if applicable,

a. Products liability ($1,000,000); and/ or

b. Hangar keepers liability (of not less than $400,000 and at least equal to the value

of the aircraft in the care, custody, and control of the hangar keeper).

2. Aircraft liability insurance, (bodily injury/ property damage $1,000,000 each occurrence/

$1,000,000 aggregate) if applicable

3. Worker’s compensation insurance, if applicable.

4. Motor vehicle liability insurance, (bodily injury/ property damage $500,000 each

occurrence/ $1,000,000 aggregate) if applicable.

Each policy of insurance maintained by the Operator or Lessee under this section shall provide 

that the Airport be named as an additional insured for ongoing and completed operations, on a 

primary and noncontributory basis with a waiver of subrogation, and shall provide that the policy 

is not cancelable and non-modifiable without thirty (30) days prior notice in writing to the Airport 

Director. Each policy of insurance maintained by the operator shall provide for the waiver for 

subrogation as to claims against the Airport.  



APPENDIX C APPLICATION FORM      AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT  
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 

The person(s), firm or legal entity listed below, requests permission to establish a lease hold or other right 
at Auburn - Lewiston Airport (LEW), ME, to engage in the following commercial (revenue producing), non-
commercial aeronautical or non-aeronautical activities: 

1. Name(s) of Applicant(s):
2. Addresses:

  Applicant’s Permanent Main 
Address: 

Applicant’s Mailing Address: 

3. Applicant’s Primary Email Address:

4. Applicant’s Primary Phone Number:  (______)

5. Applicant's Primary Business Name:
6. Purpose of Lease (check all that apply):

 Aircraft sales (new and/or used)
 Airframe and power plant repair

facilities
 Aircraft rentals
 Flight training
 Line services (aircraft fuels and oil

dispensing)
 Specialized aircraft repair service -

radios, propellers, instruments, and
accessories.

 Aircraft painting and/ or repair or
initial outfitting of interiors

 Aircraft charter and air taxi
 Specialized Aeronautical Service

Operator
 Flying clubs
 Aircraft parking and storage
 Independent Operator
 Any other activities not specifically

provided for in these Standards
(e.g. non-aeronautical)

 Non-Commercial Lease (e.g. Private Hangar)
7. Estimated Cost of Proposed Development/Improvements:

Mandatory Documents for all Prospective Lessees 
 Schedule for commencement of lease term, operation and leasehold improvements.
 Preliminary plans, specifications for any improvements which the Applicant intends to make.
 Proof (or copy of insurance company letter of intent) of liability coverage for the business operation,

flight operations, itinerant aircraft, and Operators and premises insurance.
Mandatory Documents for all Prospective Commercial Operators 

 Current financial statement prepared or certified by a Certified Public Accountant.
 Listing of assets owned, or being purchased, or leased which will be used in the business on the Airport
 Current credit report for each party owning or having a financial interest in the business and a credit

report on the business itself covering all geographical areas in which it has done business in the ten (10)
year period immediately prior to such application.

 Agreement to provide a bond or a suitable guarantee of adequate funds to the Board to be used to defray
expenses and fees normally paid by the Lessee between the estimated time the Lessee may default and
a new lease is executed and another Lessee takes over.

 Written authorization for the FAA, any aviation or aeronautics commissions, administrators, and
departments of all states in which the Applicant has engaged in aviation business to release information
in their files to the Board relating to the Applicant or its operation.

We the undersigned, certify that we are all the parties whose names are being submitted as owning an 
interest in the business or will appear on leases or other documents, as being a partner, director or corporate 
officer, and those who will be managing the business: 

_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Signature Signature 

_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Typed/Printed Name Typed/Printed Name



APPENDIX D FBO SUMMARY      AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT 
MINIMUM STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 

AUBURN - LEWISTON AIRPORT MINIMUM STANDARDS 
FBO REQUIREMENT SUMMARY 

CATEGORY TITLE 
LAND LEASE 

(ft2) 
BUIDLING LEASE 

(ft2) 
LEASEHOLD LANDSIDE/ AIRSIDE 

ACCESS REQUIRED 
BUILDING Continued 

I. Line Services 
Fuel Farm 

Area 
725 No 

office, customer lounge & 
restrooms* 

II. Flight Training 
Sized for 2 

aircraft 
725 Yes* 

office, customer lounge & 
restrooms 

III. 
Aircraft Charter 

and Taxi 
Negotiated if 

applicable 
725 Yes* 

office, customer lounge & 
restrooms* 

IV. Aircraft Sales 
Negotiated if 

applicable 
725 Yes* 

office, customer lounge & 
restrooms* 

V. Aircraft rentals 
Sized for 1 

aircraft 
725 Yes* 

office, customer lounge & 
restrooms* 

VI. 
Airframe and 

Powerplant Repair 
Negotiated if 

applicable 
2,750 No 

250 ft2office, customer 
lounge & restrooms* 

VII. 
Aircraft Painting 
and/ or Interior 

Repair 

Negotiated if 
applicable 

8,000 No 
820 ft2office, customer 

lounge & restrooms 

VIII. 
Specialized 

Aircraft Repair 
Service 

Negotiated if 
applicable 

2,750 No 
250 ft2office, customer 
lounge & restrooms* 

IX. 
Aircraft Parking 

and Storage 
8,700 

4+ nested T-
hangars 

-or-
8,000 

No 
>10 units provide

restroom facility for 
tenants* 

X. SASO Negotiated Negotiated Negotiated Negotiated 

XI. Flying Club 
Tie down or 

hangar 
Tie down or 

hangar 
No n/a 

XII. 
Independent 

Operators 

Tie down or 
hangar if 

applicable 

Tie down or 
hangar if 

applicable 
Negotiated Negotiated 

XIII. Other activities Negotiated Negotiated Negotiated Negotiated 
*Acceptable if subleased from Airport or FBO that meets the standard



Food and Beverage Opportunity at the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport 
BID # LA 2024-003 

RFP Issued:  December 20, 2023 
Proposal Due:  11 AM, February 2, 2024 

I. The Opportunity

The Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport is located on over 600 acres in the City of Auburn, 
Maine. The airport supports local and regional general aviation, air cargo, and a growing volume 
of private, charter, and corporate jet activity. The Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport has a long 
history with its sponsors, Auburn and Lewiston, and many improvements have occurred since 
its beginning in 1935 that have helped to meet changing aviation demands and community 
needs.  

The airport now serves the varied needs of corporate, charter, cargo, and recreational aviation 
activities. With additional developable acres, close proximity to Exit 75 of the Maine Turnpike, 
and an adjacent rail intermodal facility, the airport is a center of commerce seeking proposals for 
food services.    

II. The Invitation

The Airport is soliciting proposals from qualified restaurants, catering, or retail operators to enter 
into a lease to provide a variety of food and beverage support for the traveling public.  
Proposers could expect a variety of patrons ranging from local community members who are 
looking for a meal, itinerant flight crews and their passengers looking for a quick bite on their 
way, or advance calls for catering to be available for traveling groups and individuals.   

Proposers should consider the airport is a 24-hour operation, creating an opportunity for 
continuous availability on some level for food and beverage.  The better proposal will provide 
consistent menu offerings and exploit the ancillary possibilities for catering, and off-hour food 
and beverage service that locations like the airport provide.  In the interest of meeting aviation-
related needs, the airport will consider operations that focus on more limited markets like 
catering handling. A proposal that includes limited beer and wine service as part of the menu 
will be considered.   

The dedicated restaurant space is 1,185 square feet in the approximately 7,000 square foot 
airport terminal building.  The restaurant space includes airport-owned commercial kitchen 
equipment and furniture, and potential rights to seating on the airside of the terminal building 
and in terminal building common areas. 

III. Submission Requirements

The Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport will evaluate and select qualified respondents to enter 
into a contract for service and lease space that is commensurate with the selected proposal 
based on overall capability of the respondent and/or partner(s) and, in whole or part: 

A. The impact on the overall customer service delivery of the Airport to the traveling public



B. Qualification, interest, and experience in establishment of proposed undertaking
C. Adequate financial resources

Proposals received will be initially scored and ranked by a committee using the criteria below.  
Initial evaluation will be made of proposals submitted to create a short list of proposals from 
which to invite for a presentation and/or interview by the committee.   

IV. Proposal Construction

A. Proposal Contents
In order to facilitate evaluation of the qualifications and experience statement, proposers 
are instructed to follow the outline below.  Statements that do not follow the outline, or do 
not contain the required information may be considered as unresponsive proposals. 

1. Organization Information (Evaluation weight 10%):
Provide full legal name of organization, organization structure (e.g.,
corporation, partnership, etc.) and complete contact information including
mailing address, phone and fax and email address.  Briefly describe
management team as it relates to the proposal.  Provide current resumes for
management team and key positions.

2. Proposed Services (Evaluation Weight 30%)
Communicate how the proposed venue will provide prepared-food table
service, takeout service, into plane catering, and/or after-hours food and
beverage availability. A prospective menu with tentative pricing should be
included. Also, include proposed hours of service availability.

3. Experience (Evaluation weight 20%):
Provide a list of previous and current venues that are similar in nature to the
proposal that your organization has operated in the last five (5) years.  If
there is none, please list individual management involvement in previous or
current venues.  Indicate with any closures whether there were any legal
issues or suits involved with the closure.

4. Ability to Perform Financially (Evaluation weight 25%):
Include the most recent complete year’s financial statements of all venues the
proposed management team has been a part.  Also, include pro forma
financial statements demonstrating the venue’s ability to maintain at least
financial stability throughout the lease period.

5. Local Knowledge (Evaluation weight 10%):
Demonstrate in the proposal your familiarity with how the Auburn - Lewiston
Municipal Airport location fits into the community and how the venue will
capture that community.

6. References (Evaluation weight 5%):
Submit along with the above information three (3) operational and financial
references including current contact name(s) and telephone numbers.



B. Time and Place of Submission
Respondents are required to submit one (1) original and one (1) electronic copy of 
their proposal.  All responses must be received before 11:00 AM local time on 
February 2, 2024.  There will be no extensions to this deadline considered.   
Interviews may be scheduled for the week of February 5th .   
All questions must be submitted in writing before January 12th: 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Board Chair 
Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport 
80 Airport Drive 
Auburn, ME  04210 
manager@flytome.com 

All responses to questions will be posted to the airport’s website www.flytomaine.com 
not later than January 19th.  A request to schedule a tour of the space may be made 
at the email address above and must be requested by January 12th. 

Following receipt of the proposal, a review committee shall evaluate the proposals and 
select a proposal or, at the discretion of the review committee, select a short list of 
firms to interview.  Emphasis in selecting a proposal shall be placed on the 
qualifications and experience in projects similar to what has been proposed.  The 
selected business will enter into a lease contract with the airport. 

Submit Proposals to:
Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport
ATTN: Jonathan P. LaBonte, Board Chair 
80 Airport Drive 
Auburn, ME  04210 
manager@flytomaine.com 

Proposals must arrive no later than 11:00 AM on February 2, 2024.  Proposals are limited 
to 30 pages (30 single sided, or 15 double sided) or less, include informative message-
oriented graphics as necessary, and use size 11-point font including references.  Each 
submission should be in a sealed envelope or cardboard mailer, clearly marked “Request 
for Proposals for Food and Beverage Opportunity at the Auburn - Lewiston Municipal 
Airport.”  Electronic versions may be e-mailed or provided on a portable electronic drive.

The AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT reserves the right to accept or reject any or all 
Qualification Statements received because of this request, or to cancel, in part or in its 
entirety, this Request for Qualification, if it is in the best interest of the AUBURN-
LEWISTON AIRPORT to do so. 

V. CERTIFIED DBE

Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) organizations are encouraged to apply as 
the prime responder for this advertisement.  Responding Non-DBE firms shall ensure that 
DBE’s have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of any project contract in 
accordance with current requirements for DBE utilization.   

mailto:manager@flytome.com
http://www.flytomaine.com/
mailto:manager@flytome.com


Exhibit: A – Approximate Restaurant Location in Terminal 



Large stainless-steel refrigerator 

Large stainless-steel freezer—True T-49 

Ice maker and ice tub  –Manitowac Indigo Series 500 IY-0505W 

Charbroiler-- StarMax Model 613RCBCF 

Griddle— StarMax 

Range- SunFire 36’ 

Mircrowave, Panasonic Pro II NE 2180 

Deep fryers Dean model SR42GN (two units) 

Berg Fridge, model BZR-15RG 

Two Full wash stations 

Bunn Soft Heat coffee/ hot water maker, model:  Single SH, 120/240v MECH 1.5G 

Winco food warmer 

Heating lamps-model 177WG2 (two units) 

Heating lamps- model DL12112-B (two units) 

True refrigerator—T-230-LD 

Turbo Air refrigerator (small) TWR-28SD 

M3 Turbo Air refrigerator unit-MST-60 

Warming pots-ESW-66 (two units) 

Toaster, 4 slice Oster PN 156890 

Stainless steel work stations (four total) 

Floor freezer-Hotpoint 

Exhibit: B – Restaurant Equipment List as of 12/7/2023 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport - Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Drivers Discussion 

 
• Airport Personnel and Contracted Services 

o The airport continues to monitor staffing needs for all elements of services (administrative, 
financial, flight line services, and operations) 

o Current staffing count is four airport employees, two contracted operations (through Auburn 
PW and Dirigo Aerospace Solutions), and two contracted flight line services (through Dirigo 
Aerospace Solutions) 

o The staffing count is not FTEs; services are as needed (wildlife mitigation, winter ops, etc). 
o The support services that have been leveraged in the airport management transition 

(Auburn Transportation Director, IT, Finance, PW, HR) were not accounted for in FY24 given 
the financial realities the airport faced.  This will need to be discussed by the sponsors and 
the airport board in setting the FY25 budget. 

o Professional development will be budgeted higher to account for new team members. 
 

• Airport Building Leases 
o Utilities and Building Maintenance – Both of these lines should see reductions due to the 

master leases now in effect for the FBO Hangar and the White Hangar FBO and White 
Hangar Leases. 

o Hangar #5 –  There is no assurance that we will have a master lease tenant for Hangar #5 for 
the start of FY25, so the recommendation is to budget conservatively and assume we have a 
mixed of based-GA tenants and transient aircraft generating revenue there.  Utility numbers 
should become clearer after another month of managing heat in that building.  It is my 
intent to budget for the loan payment to each city in FY25 whether the airport has a master 
lease tenant or not.  Without a master tenant, it will be a net operating loss to the airport. 

 
• Maintenance Initiatives 

o Airfield – The airport has only partially converted airfield lighting to LED.  Estimates are being 
secured and continue upgrades of airfield signage to reduce operating expenses over time.  
In addition, the airport does not have a ready inventory of parts/supplies for airfield 
maintenance.  We are having discussions with vendors and other airports to consider 
purchasing inventory.  

o Pavement Maintenance – We expect MaineDOT to include the airport in a pavement 
conditions assessment during calendar year 2024.  For FY25, we will be developing a new 
five-year pavement management program to use for budgeting into the future.  FY25 
operations budget activities (non-CIP) will include spot pavement repair and pavement 
marking and additional crack filling. 

 
• Computer/Office Setup 

o With reduced headcount and re-alignment of responsibilities, FY25 brings the opportunity to 
set up a base of airport operations in the maintenance building (access to computer 
workstations, phones, etc).  Replacement of dated workstations with new workstations and 
potential fiber interconnections are possibilities. 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Auburn Air Center 

 
• Flight Line Services Revenues 

o Fuel sales – While fuel sales are up in FY24 over FY23, the intent will be to budget 
conservatively for FY25 in terms of net revenue from fuel sales.  Any improvement over 
budget net revenue (fuel sales value minus fuel expense) will help the airport in building 
reserve accounts for projects and one-time initiatives. 

o Tie downs/hangar/parking – This line is ahead of budget in FY24 driven by one-time 
customer activity tied to Hangar #5.  It would likely be budgeted at similar levels for FY25 

o Non-fuel services – A rate review of landing fees (we don’t charge ramp fees) and other 
service fees will be brought to next budget workshop.  Our landing fees are low compared to 
other airports, and are not an incentive to purchase fuel (where we have better margins) for 
some customers. 

 
• Flight Line Services Expenses 

o Dirigo Aerospace – The intent will be to pursue this relationship in a mutually beneficial way 
through FY25. 

o AvFuel fuel contract - The new fuel contract negotiated with AvFuel provides reduced 
monthly lease costs for the Jet A truck (savings of over $6,000 annually under ground 
support equipment). 

 
 


	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110 DRAFT Airport Agenda
	I. Consent Items – All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.
	II. Minutes
	1. December 13, 2023 Meeting
	VI. Old Business

	231213 Airport Minutes
	I. Consent Items – All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  None
	II. Minutes
	1. November 8, 2023 Meeting
	VI. Old Business - None


	Rev Expense
	Balance Sheet Summary
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	Fuel Sales Comparison FYQ1 and 2
	240105 LEW CAP Second Quarter Update
	230105 LEW Land Use Inspection UPDATE


	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240105 LEW CAP Second Quarter Update
	LEW-MINIMUM-STANDARDS-AND-PROCEDURES-2023-FINAL-11.08.2023


	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	2004-003-Airport-Restaurant-RFP
	LA 2024 -003 Food and Beverage FINAL
	I.    The Opportunity
	II.    The Invitation



	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	240110-Airport-Board-Packet
	2004-003-Airport-Restaurant-RFP
	Exhibit A Terminal Layout
	Exhibit B Equipment List

	240110 FY2025 Budget Drivers




